
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

AUGUST 11, 2009 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AUGUST 11,2009 

DEAR A HENDEE THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE A HENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO EARTlCIP ATE UNLESS JNVTTED BY THE MAYOR TO SPEAK, YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT IF YQUARE RECOGNIZED BY THE.MA YOR, PLEASE-PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD THANK you. 

ROBERT J. LOVERn 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 

THO"MAS 1 PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 
L REG 7/28/09-COW 7/28/09 

(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 
1. 2009 MFT MAINTENANCE-PAVEMENT MARKlNGS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIPIHEALTH DISTRICT 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
L PROC. BERWYN LITTLE LEAGUE 
2. NOTIFICATION OF 'WRITTEN ORDERS ENTERED AT THE CONCLUSIION OF 

LIQUOR LICENSE HEARING PROCEEDINGS (2) 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TI-IE CITY CLERIC 
L APPROVAL OF CLOSED COW MINUTES 6/23/09 & 7/14/09 
2. APPOINTEMENT TO DOLLARS FOR SCHOLARS COMMITTEE 

em COMMUNICATIONS FROM (ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 
L RESOLIORD-CHRISTIAN LIFE CENTER-6818 W 34TH S1. 

(I) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN, COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 
1. CHAPMAN-"PUT OUT THE FLAMES" EVENT ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2009 
2. BUDGET COMM-EXPLORE "RISK MANAGEMENT POOL" VS. SELF INSURANCE 
3. BUDGET COMM-EXPLORE "IMPACT FEE" FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION 
4. BUDGET COMM-"LITTER TAX" 
5.. BUDGET COMM-REVIEW & RE-EVALUATE "RED SPEED" CONTRACT 
6.. BUDGET COMM-REVIEWED VARIOUS FINANCIAL REPORTS 
7. BUDGET COMM-REMOVE REFERRAL ITEMS 
8.. BUDGET COMM-EXPLORE MUNCIP AL FORCLOSURE FEE 
9. CITY TREASURER-TREASURER'S OFFICE GRANT WRlTING INITATIVE 
10. CHAPMAN-3300 BLK GROVE AVE REQUEST P ARKlNG PASSES 



(1) STAFF REPORTS 
1. DEFER-PW DIRRENEWAl, OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT-QUITE ZONE 
20 CITY ADMINISTRATOR-RENEWAL OF VEHICLE INS SERVICE AGREElv[ENT FOR 

COLLISSION 
30 LA W HIGHWAY AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 
400 LAW-PIAB RESOLUTION 
So POLICE CHIEF-REQUEST FOR HIRING OF THREE OFFICERS 
60 POLICE CHIEF-PROMOTION OF OFFICER THOMAS SKKYD 
70 PW DIR-DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 
80 FINANCE DIR-COMMUNICA TION FROM SIKlCH 
900 COMMRELATIONS DIR-AMEND COMMUNITY RELATIONS ORD 
100 COlvIM RELATIONS DIR-RECOMMEND So GREENBERG AS MEMBER OF 

COMMISSION 

(K) CONSENT AGENDA: All. ITEMS ON lHECONSENT AGENDA ARE CONSIDERED TOBEROUTINE IN NATURE AND 
WILL BE ENACTED IN ONE MonON. nlERE wru... BE NO SEPARAlE DISCUSSlON OF THESE ITEMS UNLESS A COUNCn.. MEMBER so 
REQUESTS, m WInCH EVENT 11iE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED AS TIm FIRST llEM AFTER 
Al'PROV AL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

L BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PA YROLL-$8S2,S380 72 
20 BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PAY ABLES-$3,099,136058 
30 BLDG DIR-BLDG PERMITS ISSUED IN JULY 2009 
40 COLLECTIONS & LICENSING-BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED JULY, 2009 
500 BOYAJIAN-HANDICAP SIGN-Mo O'CONNELL-3206 LOMBARD-APPROVE 
6. POLASHEK-HANDICAP SIGN-Doo FLYTI-IE-6643 W 19l1i ST -APPROVE 
70 LAVRETO-COMM BARRY POST 2S6-ANNUAL PICNIC 8/22/09 
80 GIRl, SCOUTS-FALL PROGRAM SALES-l/18/09 THRU 3/2010 
9. I ST CONGREGATIONAL CHo-CLOSE GUNDERSON AV FOR EVENT-8/23/09 
100 S10DILO-OKTOBERFEST-9/12/09 
1 L BERWYN MAIN ST. CZECH OASIS-HOUBY FEST-I 013 & 10/4/09-ST CLOSEURE 
120 BLOCKPARTY-2S00 SCOVILLE-8/IS/09 
130 BLOCK PARTY-6800 W. 29lli PL-8/29/09 
14. BLOCK PARTY-2IOO CUYLER-8/29/09 
ISoo BLOCK PARTY-ISOO WESLEY-9/26/09 
160 BLOCK PARTY-2300 HIGHLAND-8/22/09 
17. GEORGE'S TAVERN-6941 STANLEY-OUTDOOR ACTIVITIES-8/29/09 
18. BLOCK PARTY-2600 EUCLID-8/23/09 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 45 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with disabilities Act, any individual who is in the need of a reasonable accommodation in order to partiCipate in or 
benefit from attendance at a public meeting ofllie City of Berwyn should contact Thomas J Pavlik, City Clerk at 7081788~2660 as soon as possible before the 
meeting date 



A Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Jtem(s) 

ROLLCALL 
A Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C. Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
1. Minutes of City Council Meeting-7/28/09 
2. Minutes of Committee of the Whole-7/28/09 

D Bid Opening - Tabulations 
1 Request to Open Bids for MFT Pavement Marking 

E. Berwyn Development Corp - Berwyn Township/Health District 

F.. Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
1.. Proclamation-Berwyn Little League 
2. Notification of Written Orders Entered at the Conclusion of 

Liquor License Hearing Proceedings (2) 

G.. Reports and Communications j,.om the City Clerk 
I. Approval of Closed COW Minutes 6/23/09 & 7114/09 
2. Appointment to Dollars for Scholars Committee 

H, Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 
I Resol/Ord-Christian Life Center- 6818 W, 34th Street 

Pages 

1- 5 
1- 3 

1- 2 

1- I 

1- 2 

1- I 
1- I 

1- 9 

I. Reports and Communications from Aldermen, Committees. other Boards and Commissions 
I, Chapman- "Put Out The Flames" Event on Monday, October 12, 2009 1- 3 
2, Budget Comm-Explore "Risk Management Pool" vs. Self Insurance 1- I 
3. Budget Comm-Explore "Impact Fee" for New Construction 1- 1 
4. Budget Comm-"Litter Tax" 1- 3 
5, Budget Comm-Review & Re-Evaluate "Red Speed" Contract J - I 
6, Budget Comm-Reviewed Various Financial Reports J- 3 
7,. Budget Comm-Remove Referral Items J- I 
8,. Budget Comm-Explore Municipal Foreclosure Fee 1- I 
9. City Treasurer-Treasurer's Office Grant Writing Initiative 1- I 
10. Chapman-3300 Blk Grove Ave - Request Parking Passes 1- I 

T. STAFF REPORTS 

L Defer-PW Dir-Renewal ofIntergovernmental Agreement-Quite Zone 1- 5 
2, City Admin-Renewal of Vehicle Ins, Svt. Agreement for Collision 1- 9 
3. Law-Highway Authority Agreement 1- IS 
4, Law-PTab Resolution 1- 5 

August 11,2009 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

5. Police Chief-Request for Hiring of Three Officers 1- I 
6. Police Chief-Promotion of Officer Thomas Skryd 1- 2 
7. PW Dir-Declaration of Surplus Property 1- 3 
8. Finance Dir-Communication from Sikich 1- 12 
9. Comm Relations Dir-Amend Community Relations Ordinance 1- I 
10. Comm Relations Dir-Recommend-S. Greenberg as Member of 

Commission 1- 2 

K. Consent Agenda 

I. Budget Chairman-Payroll-811 1109-$852,538.72 1- I 
2 Budget Chairman-Payables-8/7/09-$3,099,13658 1- 10 
3. Bldg Dir-Building Permits Issued in July 2009 1- 9 
4. Collections & Licensing -Business Licenses Issued July, 2009 1- 6 
5. Boyajian-Handicap Sign-M. O'Connell-3206 Lombard-Approve 1- 5 
6. Polashek-Handicap Sign-D Flythe-6643 W. 19th St - Approve 1- 7 
7. Laureto-Comm Bany Post 256-Annual Picnic 8/22/09 1- 2 
8. Girl Scouts-Fall Program Sales-11I8/09 thru 3/2010 1- I 
9. I" Congregational Church-Close Gunderson Ave for event-8/23/09 1- I 
10. St Odilo-Oktoberfest - 9112/09 1- 1 
I L Berwyn Main St Czech Oasis-Houby Fest-I 0/3 & 1O/4/09-St Closure 1- 3 
12. Block Party - 2500 Scoville-811 5/09 1- 2 
13. Block Party - 6800 W. 29th PI-8/29/09 1- 2 
14. Block Party - 2100 Cuyler-8/29/09 1- 2 
15 Block Party-1500 Wesley-9/26/09 1- 2 
16. Block Party - 2300 Highland-8/22/09 1- 2 
17. George's Tavern-6941 Stanley-Outdoor Activities-8/29/09 1- I 
18. Block Party-2600 Euclid - 8/23/09 1- 2 

August I J, 2009 



c. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



() / ) 
~ROBERTJ.LOVERO 

MAYOR 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK 

CITY CLERK 
..MI-NYTES 

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
JULY 28, 2009 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by 
Mayor Lovero at 8:00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following 
responded present: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul, Santoy, Polashek, Avila, 
Laureto. Absent: Skryd. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded 
by Boyajian, to excuse Alderman Skryd. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was observed 
for the deceased Elaine Kenny, mother of police officer, James Kenney, the 
deceased Joseph Fortunato, father of former alderman, Pat Fortunato, for 
the safety of our armed forces, police, firefighters, and paramedics. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The mayor 
recognized former alderman Michael Phelan who spoke in opposition of the 
recent Council action regarding the promotion of Sergeant Tom Skryd. 

4. The minutes of the regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council and the 
Committee of the Whole held on July 14, 2009 were submitted. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to concur and approve as 
submitted. Thereafter, Alderman Paul stated that she would like to amend 
item #24 of the Berwyn City Council minutes. The motion was then 
amended by Chapman, and seconded by Santoy, to approve the minutes as 
amended on face item #24 and to approve the Committee of the Whole 
minutes as submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5. Alderman Santoy submitted a communication regarding parking restrictions 
along side streets north and south of Cermak Road including Vacin Fairway. 
After discussion, Santoy made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to include 
the entire length of the Vacin Fairway from Lombard to Harlem Avenue and 
to refer the matter to the Public Works department and the Traffic Engineer 
for analysis and recommendation. After further discussion, the motion was 
further amended to refer all completed studies to the Parking and Traffic 
committee. The amended motion carried by a voice vote. 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIl 
JUly 28. 2009 

6. Alderman Laureto submitted a communication regarding resident only 
parking by Prairie Oak School. After discussion, Laureto made a motion, 
seconded by Polashek, to refer the matter to the Law department to draft 
an ordinance to enact. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

7. Alderman Laureto submitted a communication regard new signage for 
Harley Davidson, Harlem Avenue and 13th Street. After discussion, Laureto 
made a motion, seconded by Avila, to refer the matter to the Public Works 
director to resolve signage issue and to install same. The motion carried by 
a unanimous roll call vote. 

8. Alderman Laureto submitted a communication regarding Feral cat colony on 
residential block. After discussion, Laureto made a motion, seconded by 
Chapman, to refer the matter to the Law department to review the Cook 
County ordinance and to draft an ordinance regarding tampering with City 
Traps. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

9. The Parking and Traffic committee regarding referral item #23, 16th Street 
Traffic & Parking Observations & Recommendations. After discussion, Paul 
made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to refer the matter to the Law 
department to draft and/or amend ordinance. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

10. The Historic Preservation Commission submitted a communication 
regarding the Marik Property Rehabilitation Guidelines. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Paul, to refer the matter to the 
Committee of the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

11. The Law department submitted a communication regarding settlement of 
Case #01 WC 53852 (Illinois Workers Compensation Commission). 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and 
approve for payment in an amount not to exceed $80,000. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

12. The Law department submitted a communication regarding Illinois Human 
Rights Commission, Case No. 06 CF 1361. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve for payment in an 
amount not to exceed $45,000. The motion carried by a unanimous roll 
call vote. 

13. The Law department submitted a communication regarding the settlement 
approval of Case No. 08 CV 6121. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve for payment in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

2 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
JULY 28, 2009 

14, The Law department submitted a communication regarding the settlement 
of EEOC No. 440200705468. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Avila, to concur and approve for payment in an amount not to 
exceed $40,000. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

15. The CDBG director submitted a communication along with an attached 
Resolution entitled: 
A Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the Near West Suburban Housing Collaborative 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and 
adopt the resolution as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

16. The Public Works director submitted communication regarding the renewal 
of an Intergovernmental Agreement for QUite Zone. After discussion, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to defer the matter for 2 
weeks. The motion carried by a voice vote, 

17. The Public Works director submitted a request for Restocking Poles and 
Luminaries. After discussion, Chapman made a motion, seconded by 
Boyajian, to concur and approve for payment in an amount not to exceed 
$11,004. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

18. The Public Works director submitted a communication regarding the 
approval of MFT Sidewalk and Gutter repairs with the recommendation to 
award the contract to Acura, Inc in an amount not to exceed $119, 850. 
Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

19. The Public Works director submitted a communication regarding the 
approval of Ogden Avenue Alleys, Part 2 with a recommendation to award a 
contract to G&.M Concrete Company, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$618,984. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to 
concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll 
call vote. 

20. The Public Works director submitted a communication regarding the 
approval of MFT Sewer Cleaning and Televising with a recommendation to 
award a contract to Visu-Sewer, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $18,100. 
Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

3 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
.JUlY 28. 2009 

21. The Public Works director submitted a communication regarding Concrete 
V-gutter Alley versus Asphalt Overlay cost comparison. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to accept as informational 
and to refer the matter to Public Works committee and tne Budget 
committee. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

22. The Finance director submitted a communication regarding an amendment 
to the New World Software License Agreement. Thereafter, Chapman 
made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve as submitted 
and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. 
The motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Boyajian, 
Santoy, Polashek, Avila, Laureto. Nays: Paul. Excused: Skryd 

23. The Finance director submitted a communication regarding a Financial 
Advisor with an attached agreement with Austin Mead Financial Ltd. 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and 
approve as submitted and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix 
their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

24. The Consent agenda items K-1 through K-17 were submitted. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item K-2. The motion carried by a voice vote. After discussion, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Avila, to remove #3064, a check to 
Robert Yiu in the amount of $194,544. The motion to remove the item was 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and approve the remainder of the 
payables in an amended amount of $1,820,340.54. The motion carried by 
a unanimous roll call vote. 

25. The Consent agenda K-1, K-3 through K-17 were submitted 
K-1-Budget chairman-payroll for July 22,2009 for $871,719.71 
K-3-Building director, building permits issued during June, 2009 
K-4-Knights of Columbus #4200 "Tootsie Roll Drive" September 18, 19, & 

20, 2009 
K-5-CBC Shoe Corporation, sidewalk sale, August 6th thru August 9th 

K-6-Block party, 1800 Home Ave. on August 22, 2009 
K-7-Block party, 2300 Elmwood Ave on August 8,2009 
K-8-Block party, 1600 Maple Ave. on August 2, 2009 
K-9-Block party, 1300 Wenonah Ave. on August 22, 2009 
K-10-Block party, 3200 Wisconsin Ave on August 1, 2009 
K-ll-Block party, 1800 Clinton Ave. on August 15, 2009 
K·12··Block party, l300 Cuyler Ave. on August 1, 2009 
K-l3-Block party, 3200 Maple Ave. on August 29,2009 
K-14-Block party, 6900 W. 30th Place on August 15, 2009 

4 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
fUL Y 28. 2009 

K-15-Block party, 2200 Harvey/Lombard Ave on August 15, 2009 
K-16-Block party, 2600 Harvey Ave. on August 8, 2009 
K-17-Block alley garage sale, 1400 Cuyler on August 15, 2009 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto to concur and 
approve the remaining items on the consent agenda by Omnibus Vote 
Designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

26. Alderman Chapman cancelled the Budget committee meeting scheduled 
for August 10th and rescheduled for August 17, 2009 at 6:00 p.m. Finance 
director invited to attend. 

27. Alderman Boyajian called a Public Works committee meeting for Monday, 
August 17, 2009 at 5:00 p.m. 

28. Alderman Santoy announced a Business License and Taxation committee, 
meeting, as previously called, for Monday, August 3,2009 at 7:30 p.m. 

29. Alderman Polashek announced a Recreation committee meeting, as 
previously called, for Wednesday, August 5, 2009 at 6:00 p.m. Alderman 
Polashek also announced a 6th ward meeting for Monday, August 10, 2009 

30. Alderman Laureto announced a Building, Zoning, and Planning committee 
meeting, as previously called, for Monday, August 3,2009 at 6:30 p.m. 

31. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Boyajian, seconded by Laureto, to adjourn at the hour of 
8:32 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5 



MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

JULY 28, 2.009 

1. The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 6:03 
p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: Chapman, 
Boyajian, Paul, Polashek, Laureto. Absent: Skryd, Santoy, Avila. 

2. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to excuse Aldermen 
Skryd, Santoy, and Avila The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3. The Mayor referred to the Comprehensive Annual Financial report for the 
year ending December 31, 2008 that was supplied to all aldermen and 
stated that the matter will be discussed at the next Committee of the 
Whole meeting. Item may be viewed on the city's website at: 
www.berwyn-il.gov/odf/Finance/2008 CAFR-Final.pdf 

4. Fitzgerald's request-The Clerk brought forward a request from Fitzgerald's 
Night club to hold and event on August 6, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. regarding a 
tribute to Michael Jackson which will involve erecting a temporary tent on 
Fitzgerald's property. The Ma~or asked if there were any questions or 
concerns from the resident 8 ward alderman or any other aldermen 
regarding the request. There being none, the Mayor directed the Clerk to 
draft a letter to Fitzgerald's granting permission. 
Alderman Avila present at 6:05 p.m. 

5. The 2010 Census-The Mayor recognized Robert Dwan, who is coordinating 
the city's efforts for the 2010 census, see attached packet, out lining the 
time frame in the city's efforts in coordinating with the Census Bureau. 
Dwan stressed the importance and stated that $165 per person per year for 
the next 10 years in Federal tax dollars, were received for every person 
counted in the census, and is also asking for each aldermen's support in 
promoting the 2010 census and asked each to have at least 2 ward 
meetings regarding census, 1 in English and 1 in Spanish. Dwan also 
explained the U.S. Census Bureau was initially allotting $2,900 per 
municipality for the printing of brochures and flyers, promoting the 2010 
census, but has subsequently removed that offer from the table. Dwan is 
seeking approval of a $25,000 funding request, for cost associated with the 
printing of materials promoting the 2010 Census. The Mayor stated that 
Alderman Paul is the City Council's representative on the Census 
committee. Alderman Paul questioned the timetable for the ward 
meetings, Dwan responded October and November. The Mayor stated that 



COMMITTEE OF TIlE WHOLE 
JULY 28, 2009 

he will request that the Finance director, John Wysocki research a line item 
to be used for the request for funding. 

6. Agenda item J-5- Intergovernmental Agreement, Re-solution for the West 
Suburban Collaborative. The Clerk noted that there was an amendment to 
the attest portion of the Resolution and supplied a copy to all the aldermen. 
The Mayor recognized Robert Dwan, CDBG director, who briefly explained 
the Resolution, stating that this is the West Cook Housing Collaborative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the purchasing and rehabilitation of 
single family homes. 

7. Red Light Cameras-The Mayor recognized representatives from Safe Speed, 
stating that he had asked another company to give a presentation on the 
operation of Red Light Cameras. The Mayor stated that he would like to 
approach Red Speed to possibly renegotiate a contract and work out 
collections and to inform our collection agency MRA. Representative from 
Safe Speed explained the differences in their system and the software used 
and how it may be tailored to each community and that they offer a 
paperless adjudication process with on-line payments and do not charge 
municipalities for uncollected violations and that they also have bilingual 
support staff. The Mayor questioned locations and relocating cameras after 
safety has increased at the locations. Representative answered, no charge, 
and stated that they monitor, do traffic studies, and provide IDOT with 
mandated reports. The Mayor questioned collections and recognized Marcia 
Cohen from MRI regarding the collections. Safe Speed stated that send 3 
collection notices and then they turn it over to the municipality and that 
they are reconciled every 30 days. Representatives frOm Safe Speed 
stated that it is up to the municipality to issue a violation on any Violation 
that is forwarded or caught on camera and only issue violations that have 
been approved by municipality and sent back to Safe Speed. Safe Speed 
noted that they will be present at any court hearing and handle any paper 
work including appeals and contesting letters. Representatives stated that 
they have a 1 year minimum agreement and no leasing fees and noted 
they had the technology available and the ability to monitor railroad 
crossings if and when the state legislators approve and this includes ticking 
trains for blocking intersections. 

8. Avila made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to close the Committee of the 
Whole at 6:46 p.m. for personnel, pending litigation, and land acquisition. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

2 



COMMITTEE OF TIIE WHOLE 
JULY 28, 2009 

9. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to reopen the Committee 
of the Whole at 7:25 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, 
Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to adjourn the Committee 
of the Whole at7-:25-p:m: The motion carried by a voice vote . 

.3 



D. Bid Openings 

Tabulations 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

6700 West 26<' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 49'4700 Fax: (70S) 749-9503 
www,berwyn-ilgov 

August 4, 2009 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Request to Open Bids for MFT Pavement Marking 

Staff is seeking approval to open bids for the Pavement Marking Program during the August 11, 2009 City 
Council meeting. This is are-bidding of the program as bids were originally opened at rejected at the July 
14 City Council meeting. 

Recommended.Actions; 

Staff recommends the City Council open bids for the Pavement Marking during the August 11, 2009 City 
Council meeting. 



NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

CITY OF BERWYN 
2009 MFT MAINTENANCE" 
PAVEMENT MARKINGS 

TIME AND PLACE OF OPENING OF BIDS: Sealed Proposals for the improvement described 
below will be received at the office of the City Clerk, City of Berwyn, 6700 W. 26·h Street, 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402, in Cook County, Illinois until 12;00 Noon on August 7, 2009. 
Proposals will be opened and read at 8:00 p.m. on August 11, 2009, at the regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Mayor and City Council. 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK; Thermoplastic pavement markings and curb painting at various 
locations throughout the City. 

BIDDERS INSTRUCTIONS: 

1. Plans and proposal forms will be available in the office of Frank Novotny & Associates, 
Inc., 825 Midway Drive, Willowbrook, Illinois 60527, (630) 887-8640, for a non
refundable fee of $35.00. 

2 If prequaliflcation is required, the 2 low bidders must file within 24 hours after the letting an 
'Affidavit of Availability" (Form Be 57), in triplicate, showing all uncompleted contracts 
awarded to them and all low bids pending award for Federal, State, County, Municipal and 
private work. One copy shall be filed with the Awarding Authority and 2 copies with the 
I DOT District Office 

3 All proposals must be accompanied by a proposal guaranty as provided in BLRS Special 
Provision for Bidding Requirements and Conditions for Contract Proposals contained in the 
"Supplemental Specifications and Recurring Special Provisions' .. 

4 The Awarding Authority reserves the right to waive technicalities and to reject any or all 
proposals as provided in BLRS Special Provision for Bidding Requirements and Conditions 
for Contract Proposals contained in the "Supplemental Specifications and Recurring Special 
Provisions" 

REJECTION OF BIDS; The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals, to waive 
technicalities, and to accept the Proposal deemed to be most favorable to the Owner. 

By Order of 
MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF BERWYN 

By: Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk (s) 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn TownshiplHealth District 



F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



The City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2567 

www,berwyn-U.gov 

Proclamation 

WHEREAS, The Berwyn Little League has been in existence since 1950 and has been an integral part 
of the growth of Berwyn's youth; 

WHEREAS, The Berwyn Little League is the first chartered team in Illinois District 9, which 
encompasses twelve different communities; 

WHEREAS, This year's team is the first team to have been to the Illinois Sectional Tournament since 
1996, and the Berwyn Little League Team finished in 2nd Place in the 2009 Illinois Sectional 
Tournament; 

WHEREAS, This Berwyn team has the first female ballplayer as part of its roster; 

WHEREAS, The Berwyn Little League Board of Directors, together with all of Berwyn, are 
justifiably proud of the accomplishments of the team; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, ROBERT 1. LOVERO, Mayor of Ben~YIl, do hereby proclaim August 11, 
2009 as BERWYN LITTLE LEAGUE DAY and I urge all of our residents to join me in expressing 
sincere congratulations and best wishes to the team in all future endeavors. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn this 11th day of August 2009. 

2009 Berwyn Little League Team 

Players: 
Carlos Sandoval 
Gabriel TorTes 
Steven Kuta 
Eric Lang 

Jose Carrero 
Mike Hard 
Joe 'Masa'Reyna 
Jaime Barrios 

Coaches: Joe Reyna and Mike Muro 

Joe Kadela 
Christie Spisak 
Israel Reyes 
Nicholas Campanile 

Aaron Baumer 
Anthony Jenke 
Jonathon Campanile 
Luke Dhughenbaugh 

Manager: Bill Spisak 

overo - Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 

/1- A Century of Progress with Priae 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 7SS--2660 Fax: (70S) 7SS-2567 
www,berwyn-ilgov 

August 4, 2009 

Members of the City Council 

Re: Notification of Written Orders Entered at the 
Conclusion of a Liquor License Hearing Proceeding 

Council Members: 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 804,21 (b) (6) of the Berwyn Codified Ordinances, 
below you will find orders entered in the following liquor license hearing proceedings: 

Licensee Location 

09-L-ll Bootlegs Bar 2717 -19 Ridgeland, (5) Day suspension 

which is entered and continued for (6) months until February 4th, 2010. 

Respectfull y, 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 
www.belwyn .. ilgov 

July 31, 2009 

Members of the City Council 

Re: Notification of Written Orders Entered at the 
Conclusion of a Liquor License Hearing Proceeding 

Council Members: 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 804.21 (b) (6) of the Berwyn Codified Ordinances, 
below you will fmd orders entered in the following liquor license hearing proceedings: 

Licensee 

09-L-1.3 Berwyn Food and Liquor 

Location 

6338 Ogden Ave. 

Respectfully, 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

(30) Day Warning 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



Robert J. Lovero 

( / \ Maym 

\:> A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 260, Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

wwwberwyn'il,gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

August 5, 2009 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Approval of Closed COW Minutes 6·23·09 and 7·14·09 

Ladies and Gentleman; 

I request your concurrence on approving the Closed Committee ofthe Whole Minutes of 
June 23 and July 14,2009 as reviewed in Closed Session on July28, 2009_ 



Robert J. Lovero 
'l Mayor 

(/tr' 
6 A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 
www,berwyu"il gOY 

August 7, 2009 

THOMAS J. PA VlJK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk, Chainllan Berwyn $ 4 Scholars 

Re: Appointment to Dollars For Scholars Committee 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
I would like to appoint Ricardo "Ricky" Sanchez to the Berwyn Dollars For Scholars 
Committee to replace Ieanmarie Hajer, who has agreed to step down from her 
appointment as Secretary of the Board. I believe Mr .. Sanchez's long involvement in the 
community which includes Youth Crossroads, former Board member of School DisL 98, 
and one of the founding members ofthe Berwyn Youth Commission will make him a 
great asset to the Committee. 

In addition, I would like to expand the committee from five members to seven or possibly 
even nine if we have enough interest from qualified candidates. Currently I have had 
several individuals express their interest injoining the committee. Ifthe Mayor or 
Aldenllen have any qualified individuals who would be willing (0 volunteer their time, 
please do not hesitate to submit the names of any community members who maybe 
interested. 

I respectfully ask the concurrence in the appointment of Mr. Sanchez and the expansion 
of the number of members to the committee. 



H. Communications From (Zoning) 

Board of Appeals 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Buildil1gANewBe'WYl1 

ROBERT J. LOVERO. Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 
Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • www.berwyn-il.gov 

July 27, 2009 

SENT BY FAX AND FIRST CLASS MAIL 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
CHAIRMAN Joel W Chrastka 
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY Milton F Persin 
MEMBERS: 
Dominick Castaldo 
Robert W. Fejt 
Mary Esther Hernandez 
Lance C. Malina 
Don Miller 

City Clerk-City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

RE:Christian Life Center 
6818 W. 34th Street 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

II 

Enclosed is a Resolution and Ordinance pertaining to the above captioned 
Hearing(s) in which the Berwyn Zoning Board of Appeals recommends 
approval by the City Council. 

Please present to the City Council at your earliest convenience. 

Sincerely 

Milton F. Persin 
Executive Secretary 



RESOLUTION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LOTS 40, 41, 42,43, 44,45, 46 AND THE VACATED ALLEY LYING NORTH OF 
AND ADJOINING LOT 41 IN BERWYN, A SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 4, 5,12, 
13,20,21,28,29,34,35,36 AND 39 IN LAVERGNE A SUBDIVISION OF PART 
OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIP AL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

COMMON ADDRESS 

3409 S. Grove Ave. & 6818 W. 34th Street 

REOUEST BY APPLICANT 
Operation of a Coffee House 

APPLICANT- Individual! a d Collectivel 
Christian Life Center Josephine & Alex Wu) 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
July 21, 2009 

DATE OF PUBLIC NOTICE PUBLICATION 
July 1st, 2009, Life Newspaper 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

, 

Messrs: Malina, Castaldo, Fejt, Miller,Chrastka and Persin. Mrs. Hernandez was 
absent. 

WHEREAS, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the BERWYN ZONING 
BOARD OF APPEALS, (the "BOARD"), in a PUBLIC MEETING of the 
BOARD on the 21st day of July , in the year2009 , 
having considered all the facts presented at the Hearing of this 
matter; 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT has been duly informed that: (a) if 
the BOARD fully or partially approves the request of the APPLICANT 
and the CITY COUNCIL concurs in such decision; or (b) if the CITY 
COUNCIL fully or partially approves the request even though the 
BOARD has rejected the request of the APPLICANT or if the BOARD 
has made no recommendation to the CITY COUNCIL; the APPLICANT 
must obtain a building permit within SIX (6) MONTHS after the date 
that the ORDINANCE is enacted; 

The BOARD has reached its decision after considering the 
testimony of the witnesses and the documents presented both prior 
to and during the Hearing, briefly set forth as follows: 



PRELIMINARY COMMENTS: 

Applicant purchased the property on 3/24/04 and the improvements 
consist of a three story stone church building with common address of 
3409 S. Grove Avenue and a three story frame parsonage house 
building with a common address of 6818 W. 34TH Street. Both 
buildings are contained within the dimensions of one zoning lot with 
one parcel identification number. 

From review of the available zoning maps and other available 
information and also as described by the Building Director, this parcel 
is shown as a Public Area. 

SECTION 1246.09 entitled REZONING OF PUBLIC AND SEMIPUBLIC 
AREAS, states: "An area indicated on the Zoning Map as a public park, 
recreation area, public or private school site, cemetery or other similar 
open space shall not be used for a purpose other than deSignated. 
When the use of the area is discontinued, it shall AUTOMATICALLY be 
zoned to the most restricted adjoining district. The Building DirectOr 
cited this Section as the basis for the denial and the applicant appealed 
from that decision. 

Section 1244.05 (c) entitled POWER TO REVERSE OR AFFIRM.states: 
"The Board may reverse or affirm, wholly or partially, or may modify 
or amend, the order, requirement, deCision or determination appealed 
from, which DOES NOT involve a variation, conditional use, or a zoning 
change, without approval of Council, etc ... ". Since there was an 
automatic zoning change to the most restricted adjoining district under 
Section 1246.09, I will be sending this resolution to the City Council for 
final decision. 

It appears that the closest adjoining district is a B-1 and the second 
closest is a 8-2. Churches are allowed as a Permitted Use in both 
districts. Church and churches is and are not defined in our Zoning 
Code and the general definitions range from the traditional as a 
building of public Christian worship to a place of public worship of a 
non-Christian religion and any non-Christian religious society, 
organization, or congregation. 



1. The applicant was represented by attorney Mark W. Daniel,and- his 
first witness was David Tinberg, Pastor of the church identified as the 
CHRISTIAN UFE CENTER-BERWYN ASSEMBUES OF GOD CHURCH. 
They are a Not-for Profit Illinois Corporation incorporated under the 
name of CHRISTIAN UFE CENTER ASSEMBUES OF GOD, INC. and he 
is the President of the corporation. The property was purchased from 
the United Methodist Church on March 24, 2004, and then as now is 
improved with a three story stone church building and a frame 
parsonage house. The congregation of the Methodist church had 
dwindled to the point where the sale was necessary and the church 
was actually used as a haunted house for children at times, but there 
still was some religious activity on the premises. When they purchased 
the parcel they were never told that they could not use the premises 
for religious purposes. 

2. The church is irregular in shape and measures about 155 feet from 
north to south. The parsonage house is located west of the church 
building and measures about 40 feet north to south, excluding the 
porch to the north and about 25 feet wide from east to west excluding 
the easterly wooden deck. Set back of the parsonage house is 30 feet 
from 34th Street and about 15 feet from Grove Avenue. 

3. The church building has a full basement containing the furnace and 
water heater and a kitchen area. The rest of the basement is used for 
special church gatherings. The main place of worship is on the first 
floor area and it can ac(;ommodate up to 600 people. The second floor 
has a gymnasium, office counseling places and is used for youth 
religious groups that meet every Wednesday. The third floor area is 
used mostly for religious classes. There is no on site parking so all 
parking is on the street and they also have space in the MacNeal 
parking lot at the northwest corner of 34th and Grove Avenue, with 
about 40 parking spaces available for their use. 

4. The parsonage house has a basement and a large open area with a 
kitchen on the first floor level, 3 bedrooms and a wash room on the 
second floor level, ane! the third floor is an attic with dormers 
permitting walking access and is used by the present occupants as part 
of their living area. The applicant proposes to open an infusion 
coffeehouse on the first floor level with about eight 2-top tables, a 
sofa/share seating area around a large bay window, and the back of 
the coffeehouse would be designed in a family concept with focus on 



children. Principal means of ingress and egress is from 34th street. 
Plans include a handmade design of the espresso bar in clear view. 

5. They were told by a City Official that they must apply for a business 
license to operate a coffeehouse in the parsonage house, and that it 
would be denied and they would then have to appeal from that 
decision. (It is the opinion of attorney Daniel that having the applicant 
apply for a business license was a mistake, as this does not involve a 
commerCial business venture). MrS. Josephine Wu, a deacon in the 
church, resides in the parsonage house with her husband, Dr. Alex Wu, 
and their three children. 

6. The witness stated, that although they presently have meetings 
with small groups on the church premises, having such meetings with 
small groups while serving beverages in the parsonage house will 
create a less formal atmosphere, where people will be greeted with 
friendly smiles and welcoming hellos, and will operate as an 
extension of the religious outreach program where such informal 
meetings will help gain an understanding of the religious 
characteristics of their church. Although most of participants will be 
parishioners, they will welcome non-parishioners to just browse over a 
beverage and then perhaps join one of their groups. Participants will 
be asked to donate funds to cover the cost of the beverage they are 
drinking and Mr. Tinberg suggested $2.00 for a cup of coffee. They 
also have plans to offer signature deserts and samples of creative 
flavor infusnons, and some of these items will be available for sale. This 
coffeehouse activity is not much different than other religious uses that 
have opened coffee shops as part of their ministry. It is not their intent 
to compete with any commercial type establishment such as Starbucks 
or other commercial coffeehouses and they will set themselves apart 
from that type of high priced competition. 

7. Although they are not yet certain of the hours of operation, they are 
considering hOurs of 6:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. Monday through 
Thursday, and 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. Friday and Saturday, and they 
will be closed on Sunday. He estimates a maximum of 30 to 40 people 
in the coffeehouse at anyone time, but usually will be much less. 
Initial cost for the property was $600,000.00 and cost of adding 
improvements has alrecldy reached the sum of around $400,000.00. 

8. Josephine Wu testified that she and her family reside in the second 
floor area which now contains three bedrooms, 2 bathrooms and a 
sitting room area. They may remodel the attic area with a large family 
room at a later date. They will use tl1e kitchen on the first floor but will 



not in any way intelfere with the coffeehouse operation. They_have 
been holding women's groups meetings on the first floor level and 
using chairs and tables borrowed fl"Om the church, and they have 
never had any complaints from the neighbors. Tiley will serve coffee, 
other beverages and smoothies in the coffeehouse and will not extend 
the operation to any outside activities. Her husband will generally help 
her in operating the coffeehouse. Jllttorney Daniel informed the Board 
that Mr. & Mrs. Wu have obtained a loan with a mortgage on other 
property they own to finance the interior remodeling of the 
coffeehouse. They intend to place a modest sign identifying the 
entrance to the coffeehouse on the north side of the building and they 
will comply with all building codes and regulations pertaining to 
individuals with disabilities. 

9. Rich Olson, Land Use Planner, testified that the church and 
parsonage house are both situated on one zoning lot. There are other 
churches with coffeehouses such as this proposed coffeehouse, and 
this is merely an extension of the religious activity of the church. He 
pointed out that both the B-1 and B-2 Districts allow churches as a 
permitted LIse. 

10. Alderman Nona Chapman was concerned about other licenses that 
may be necessary in regard to preparation of food and use of the 
kitchen by Mr. & Mrs. WLI while meetings are taking place. Attorney 
Daniel stated that the applicant will comply with any other license 
requirements and Mrs. Wu stated that she and her family are willing to 
sacrifice their own comfort 

11. In conclusion, attorney Daniel again stated that both buildings are 
on one zoning lot; although the land classification is for Public Use, 
when such use was discontinued the area was automatically zoned to 
the most restricted adjoining use under the Zoning Code which is a B-1 
classification and churches are allowed as a permitted use in a B-1 
District; the prior owner did not abandon the religious use by legal 
definitioni this coffeehouse is an extension of the religious activity 
therefore it was a mistake to require a business license; this 
coffeehouse should be allowed as a matter of rlghti attorney Daniel is 
also of the opinion that the deCision of the Board does not require 
approval of the City Council. 



12. 

A. The area investigator, Joel Chrastka, presented a written report 
which is incorporated by reference in this resolution. He did his 
investigation with Mrs. Wu on July 16th, 2009, made a visual inspection 
of the site and distributed the notices of the hearing on Saturday July 
11, 2009 on both sides of 34th street and both sides of the 3400 block 
of south Grove. 

B. The proposed coffeehouse is to be operated as part of the Christian 
Life Ministries. This Ministry has been a part of the Berwyn-Cicero 
community for many years beginning on 16th & Austin, moving to 26th 

& Austin, and then to 34th Street. The facility was previously a 
Methodist church which was vacated because the congregation was too 
small to sustain a viable church operation. 

C. The proposed coffee bar will be on the first floor of the three story 
residential building. The Wu family will continue to reside in the upper 
two floors. The coffee bar will have three seating areas with space for 
approximately twenty people. It will be operated as a nonprofit 
enterprise under the auspices of the Christian Life Ministries Church. 
The plans are to brew and sell coffee. Tentative hours of operation are 
6:00 P.M. to 8:00 Or 10:00 P.M. There is an unfinished full basement 
in the building. 

D. Immediately to the east is the old Berwyn South Library now owned 
by MacNeal hospital for storage. Across the street on the north side of 
34th street is a parking lot and three story medical office building for 
MacNeal. On the northwest corner of Grove and 34th Street is another 
MacNeal parking lot, and to the west on 34th street and south Grove 
Avenue is a mix of single family and multiple family residences. Mr. 
Chrastka voted in favor of granting the operation of the coffeehouse as 
a permitted use. 

13. Messrs: Malina, Castaldo, Fejt, Miller and Persin all agreed with the 
area investigator and voted in favor of permitting the operation of the 
coffeehouse as a permitted use. Facts presented indicate that the 
coffeehouse will be operating under the ownership of a Not for Profit 
Corporation and the facts as described can reasonably be deemed to 
support the conclusion that this operation is merely an extension of the 
church ministry; funds collected for the beverages and other items sold 
are donations to cover the cost and profit is not the primary intent; 



this coffeehouse will not be in competition with any similar 
commercial- -business in th'e area; zoning was automatically chan-ged
under Section 1246.09 when the church use was established; and 
church use is a permitted use in the B-1 District. 

The final vote was 6 to 0 in favor of granting the appeal of the 
applicant by declaring the coffeehouse operation to be an extension of 
the religious church ministry use on the premises, in accordance with 
the testimony at the hearing and documents presented. 

The decision of the Board was made on the 2pt day of July, 2009. 

BERWYN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

// 
on F. Persin-Executive Secretary 



ORDINANCE # 

Be it ordained by the City of Berwyn that: 

Whereas, the question of granting the Variation(s) included in1:his~ordinance was 
referred to the Board of Zoning Appeals to hold a Public Hearing thereon; 
Whereas, such Public Hearing was held after Public Notice was given in the manner 
provided by law; 
Whereas, the said Board has made a report containing findings of fact, and has 
recommended the granting of said Variation(s); 
Whereas, the Applicant Christian Life Center & Josephine & Alex. '\;Iu 
Has agreed to adhere to the Building Code of the City of Berwyn, Illinois; 
Whereas, the Applicant has agreed that the representations made to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals and all other matters considered and as decided by the Zoning 
B?ard of Appeals shall be binding upon the Applicant and all of 
1 ts & the1"t privies, successors and assigns; 

AND WHEREAS, THE FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ZONING BOARD 
OF APPEALS ARE HEREBY ADOPTED AND MADE A PART HEREOF; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Illinois: 
Goomon address is 3409 S. Grove Ave. & 6818 W. 34th Street and legally 

described as follows: 

LOTS 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46 AND THE VACATED ALLEY LYING NORTH OF 
AND ADJOINING LOT 41 IN BERWYN, A SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 4, 5,12, 
13,20,21,28,29,34,35,36 AND 39 IN LAVERGNE A SUBDIVISION OF PART 
OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRlNCIP AL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

The operation of a coffeehouse is granted as an extension of 
the church religious purpose on the property in accordance with 
the. testimony at the hearing, documents presented, and the reso
lut1on. 

This Ordinance shall become and be effective immediately upon its passage, 
approval and publication in the manner prescribed by law. 

Passed this day of __________ _ 

Number Voting Yes: Number Voting No: ______ _ 

Absent: Abstain, _________ _ 

Approved this __ day of, _____ ~ __ 
ATTEST:. 

Robert J, Lovero-Mayor 
Tom Pavlik- City Clerk 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



THE CITY OF BER"VYN, ILLINOIS 
G700 West 211th Street. Ikrwyn, J1Jinnis 61).102-U701 • Telephone: (70B) 788·2660 • F;::x: (708) 788-2567 

W'ww berwyn-il gov 

August6,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUBJECT "Put out the Flames" event on Monday, October 12, 200.9 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

:"IONA N. CHAPMAN 
Fin-a Ward Alderman 

ml: (70K) 4H4 Nnl1" ((,(,(,2) 
E-\bil: lst\\"arJf{f'Bef\\'yn-IL (;0\. 

Berwyn Firefighters Local 506 is hosting their 2nd annual "Put out the Flames" event on Monday, October 
12, 2009 The event will raise money and bring awareness for the Illinois Fire Safety Alliance "I Am Me" 
Burn Camp, 

The event will include the Chicago Blackhawks game on the evening of October 12th and a local special 
pre-event prior to the game. The pregame event will require the use of Winsor Avenue from Harlem to 
Maple between 5:00pm and 7:30pm 

I am requesting City Council approval to grant permission for this event. Police, Fire, and Public Works 
support is necessary and contingent upon your approval 

Please see attached for the for the specifics 

Thank you for your consideration 

Sincerely, 

Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 



DATE: August 6, 2009 

TO: Alderman Nona Chapman 

FROM: Firefighter Mike Laureto 

SUBJECT: Berwyn Firefighters Local 506 2nd "Put out the Flames" Night Pregame Block Party 

I would like to respectfully request that on October 12th, 2009 the City of Berwyn block of Windsor 

Ave (from Harlem to Maple) for the Berwyn Firefighters Local 506 2nd Annual "Put out the Flames" Night 

Pregame Block Party .. We will be blocking the street off from 5pm to 730pm 



The 
BERWYN 

FIREFIGHTERS 
LOCAL 506 

Presents 

PUiy ~MT T~t~ 
\6i /D\ th IAl i,,' .:~. 
F

·J·<>·····l···· % p~ n Ei ............... 0~ 

[I' ·.l!~0:,W \# IJ ......•.................. ~~ 
N: ~,~~. Wd~r~il 

GREAT TEAM. GREAT FANS. GREAT CAUSE. 

The Berwyn Firefighters Local 506 and the Chicago Blackhawks have teamed up to 
raise money and awareness for the Illinois Fire Safety Alliance's "I am Me" Burn 
Camp. Last year we had a pregame party then headed down to United Center to see the 
Blackhawks take on the Calgary Flames For each ticket we sell, $10 is donated to IFSA! 

The Pregame Block Party will be held on Windsor Ave between the Harlem Ave and 
Maple Avenue The party starts at 5pm at The James Joyce Irish Pub and Quan's 
Oasis. Both will be open serving cold refreshments and Buona Beef will be catering the 
whole event! We will have raffle prizes and presenting a check to the Illinois Fire Safety 
Alliance before we leave for the game We hope to see you there! 

If you would like to purchase a ticket package or would like to donate to the burn camp, 
call Berwyn Firefighter Mike Laureto 

70B·415·1247 

;,., Drink Spedal includes :111 donU'slic lllld intpUrl~'d nip heer III the ,J;lIlIl~S .Ju~t~ Irish Pub and cnnncd bt'l'r:ll QUlln·.~ Oll~i.~ 
++ All UIC fond is being prepared nlld tlulilItcd hy Uunl1:1 nel'f (!ltnin:;! 



,~ 
Robert J. Lovero 

Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik. 

Citv Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70B) 788-2675 

www"berwyn-ilguv 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Date: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert L Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of tile ______ ""B"'u""d""ge"'t."C"'o"'mm""""'itt""e""e'--_____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 ~ 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City Hall 
.---------~--------------~---~-~ 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyaj ian (7: 20pm) , 
Laureto. Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director. John Wysocki 

The inatter discussed was referral item# __ --.:dated'--_____ .in regards to: _____ _ 
Explore a"risk management pool" as done by nrh".,. cities 
vs. our "self insurance" as we have rigbL.n,"-'Q-""w~ __________ _ 

It is tile recommendation ofthe committee tilat we send this communica tion to 
Brian Pabst and Administration Commi ttee for study and rpJrj ew 

Voting Aye: ___ ~3",--_______ _ 

Voting Nay: __ -'O'--_____ _ 

Adjourned: 8: 50 p. m. 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



~J 

Y
\I Robert ,J. Lovero 

Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illillois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fa:x: (708) 788'2675 

www.berwyn-iLgov 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Date: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ ~B"'-"'ud""g""e""t_"C""o"'mm""""'itt"'e"'e'__ _____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 ffi 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City H~ll 

--------~------------~--~----
Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyajian(7:20pm) , 

Laureto, Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director, John Wysocki 

The matter discussed was referral item# dated in regards to: ----
Explore an "Impact Fee" for all new constrJlction 

It is the recommendation ofthe committee that we send the communication 
to Building, Planning, and Zoning and to the fuJiJding director 
for study and review 

Voting Aye: ___ 3"'--_____ _ 

Voting Nay: __ ~O ______ _ 

Adj ourned: __ -><.8~: 5'"'0~p"".UJm ..... ~---

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



I
q 
Robert J. Lovero Thomas J. Pavlik: 

Mayor City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn,Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www . .berwyn-ilgov 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Date: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J. Lavero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the ______ B=u.::d""ge"'t-'C"'o"'mm"""""itt"'e~e'__ _____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 & 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City Hall 
--------~------~~~~~~-=~ 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyajian(7:20pm) , 
Laureto, Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director, John Wysocki 

The inatter discussed was referral item# dated in regards to: ___ _ 
The Litter tax should be brought back for d; SCllSS; on and rmriew 
the ordinance 

It is the recommendation of the committee that we send to the Law department 
for review of the ordinance "Litter Tax" 

Voting Aye: ___ 3-=--_____ _ 

Voting Nay: __ --'O'--_____ _ 

Adjoumed: __ --<8'-':~5"'0'-"p_mJlL.... ___ _ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



obert J. Lavero 
Mayor 

Thomas J. Pavlik. 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-iLgov 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Date: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J_ Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ ----=B"-'u"'d"'g"'et"-'CO""'-'mm"""""itt"'e"'e ______ was held 

On July 13, 2009 M 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City H~ll 
-----~--~----------~~~~-=~ 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyaj ian (7 : 20pm) , 
Laureto, Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director. John Wysocki 

The matter discussed was referral item# ___ dated _____ --...ein regards to: ___ _ 
Request Red Speed to review and re-evaJuate the contract 

It is the recommendation of the committee that refer to Brian Pabst, Mayor, 
and Law department and Budget for a meeting with Red Speed 

Voting Aye:_--=3::....... _________ _ 

Voting Nay:_--'o'---_______ _ 

Adjoumed:_--,8,-,-:-",5""0,-,,p~. IDill..o.-. ____ _ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



obert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
Citv Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyrril.gov 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Dare: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the ______ £B!'!Oull!d""g'21et~C,,;ob!.!mmill!l!itt!±e!2!e<_ _____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 m. ____ ~7~:~0~0~p~.m~._a~t~t~h~e~B~e~r~wyn~~C~i~t~y_=H~~==11 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyajian(7:20pm) , 
Laureto, Treasurer Kroc. Finance Director. John Wysock~ 

The inatter discussed was referral item# dated in regards to:. _____ _ 
John Wysocki presented and reviewed the 2008 Comprebensj17e Annual Financial 
Report. Fund BaJance policy, Top General FlJnd revenues, 2009 
Budget shortfalls and the Actual Report to 5-31-09 

It is the recommendation of the committee that _______________ _ 
Accept as informational and discuss at next meeting 

Voting Aye: ___ ----'3L... ______ _ 

VotingNay:. ___ ~OL_ _______ _ 

A~ourned:. ___ ~8~:d5~0-¥p~.m~. ____ _ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70B) 788"2675 
www . .berwyn1J..gov 

Nona Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

Dare: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J _ Lovero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ ---"B"'u""d""g"'et""C""o""n""'J"'rn"'itt"'e"'e'--_____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 at 7: 00 p.m. at the Berwyn City H.;tll 
~ ______ ~ ____________ ~ __ -L __ ~ 

Those in atrendance were: Aldermen Chapman! Avila! 
Laureto, Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director, John Wysocki 

The matter discussed was referral item#--::,-,:----,datedc--____ .in regards to: ___ _ 
Referrals #19, 21, 16, 25, 24 

It is the recommendation of the committee that remove referral item numbers 

19,21.16,25, and 24 from the B1Jdget CQl!llllittBB 

Voting Aye: ___ -'2"--_______ _ 

VotingNay. _____ O~ _______ _ 

Adjourned: __ ----'Su...;... ,JC5 O"'p~mJ.l...-_--_ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member -left at 7: 20p . m. 



Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik 

Citv Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, lJlinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70B) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www,berwyn-iLgov 

Nona Chapman 
1st Ward Alderman 

Dare: July 13, 2009 
Mayor Robert J. Lavero 
And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

A meeting of the _____ --'B=:.u"'d"'g"'e"-t C"""om""""m"'itte=e:...-_____ was held 

On July 13, 2009 & 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn City Hall 
'------~--------~--~~~ 

Those in attendance were: Aldermen Chapman, Avila, Boyajian(7:20pm) , 
Laureto, Treasurer Kroc, Finance Director. John Wysocki 

The inatter discussed was referral item# ___ ,dated. _____ in regards to: ___ _ 
Explore a Muncipal Forclosure Fe,€) similar to ollr"Tranfer Tax" 
that would be passed on to be Financial Institutions forcJosjng 
on properties 

It is the recommendation of the committee that we refer to the Mayor's office 
and Law department, Brian Pabst to review and make a recommendation 

Voting Aye: __ --'3=--_____ _ 

VotingNay. __ --'O~ _______ _ 

Adjourned: ____ ...,S<-':-"s'-"O'--"p'-'".-"'m...,.. __ _ 

Nona Chapman-Chairman 
Rafael Avila-Member 
Jeffrey Boyajian-Member 



( q, Robert J. Lovero 
," \ Idaya, 

Joseph M. Kroc 
City Treasurer 

y 
A Century of Progress with .Pride 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www,berwyn-U .. gov 

August II, 2009 

Han. Robert 1. Lavero 
Aldermen of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th St 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Treasurer's Office Grant Writing Initiative 

Dear Mayor Lovero & Members of the City Council, 

After meeting with various City departments, it has come to my attention that there are a 
substantial number of grant opportuoities that the City of Berwyn has not been able to take 
advantage of due to time constraints and limited resources. 

Although we have been successful in obtaining some grants due to the hard work of various 
department employees and city officials, I believe the Treasurer's office can be instrumental in 
centralizing the grant writing process and in taking on much of the City's grant writing directly. 
This will help alleviate the burden on some employees who will now be able to focus on other 
duties and also allow the City to capitalize on many more grant awards as we intend to pursue 
available grants very aggressively .. 

Although we may ultimately need to engage a commission-based grant writer for certain, specific 
grants, the Treasurer's focus on grant writing will help lessen the financial burden on the City 
while bringing in more funds for programs that the City desperately needs .. Of course, due to 
[mancial constraints, we will use discretion in pursuing any matching grants that would require 
the City to expend additional money (which would require Council approval). 

This is one of the Treasurer's office's first initiatives to expand the duties of the office and take a 
more proactive role in generating more revenue for the City .. Although I have been involved in 
the grant writing process in various not-far-profit organizations, I will be attending a Grant 
Writing and Resource Development Workshop on August 20th and 21st in Countryside, IL to 
receive additional training. As the Treasurer's office does not have an expense account, Mayor 
Lovero has agreed to pay the $375 fee for the conference from his expense account 

I request that this communication be accepted as informationaL 

Sincerely, 

-~~!:-
Treasurer 
City of Berwyn 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www,berwyn-iLgov 

August6,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUBJECT: 3300 block of Grove Avenue request parking passes 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Ward Alderman 

HM: (708) 484 Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: IstWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

In January of this year the residents of the 3300 block of Grove Avenue requested superzone "Permit Parking 
Only" on their block. The permit parking zone will be on the west side of Grove Avenue only, in front of their 
residences from the alley north of 34th Street to approximately 3326 Grove Avenue. This request was in 
response to the parking problems experienced on Grove Avenue due to the high parking demand and the 
current short term parking regulations. The petitions with their names, addresses and signatures were 
presented at the January 27,2009 meeting. The request was approved and sentlo the Traffic Engineer for 
evaluation. 

After speaking with our traffic engineer, Nicole Campbell, she suggested superzone parking enforcement 
after the garage construction was complete. But, right now parking in that area is in high demand because 
of the construction along with the parking has to be shared with the businesses along Grove. 

In the interim, special visitor parking passes could be used to allow the residents to park on Kenilworth and 
34th Street The passes for use on Kenilworth and 34th would be the only feasible solUtion during this time. 

Please forward this communication to the Collector's Office for the distribution of passes and to the Police 
Department for coordination of enforcement 

~~{ha~n~~ 
1 st Ward Alderman 



Section J 

Sta Reports 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 08/14/09 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item J-1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 07/28/09 Item #16 

FROM 

Re: 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

RESOLUTION-RENEWAL OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT-QUITE ZONE 

Templete -. xis 



To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

bert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 49··4700 

www berwyn"il gov 

Mayor Robert 1 Lovero & City Council Members 

Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement for Quite Zone 

July 20, 2009 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Dir,ctor 

ITEM NO. ~.-ffi--~. 
DATE II II 2 8 2009 
DISPOSITION "'r>f-f---,-~ 

Fax: (7li8i 749'9503~2 = 
----._----

The City of Berwyn and the Villages of Riverside and North Riverside have entered into a 
intergovernmental agreement for engineering services to receive "Quiet Zone" designation for their 
intersections with the Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad line. The Municipalities have retained 
Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd .. (CBBEL) pursuant to a contract executed in 2008 to perform such 
a study and provide a report and recommendations regarding the proposed Quiet Zone. 

The Federal Railway Administration has reviewed the municipalities' previous study and is requiring 
various modifications prior to designating these railroad intersections eligible for "Quiet Zone" 
designation. A new Intergovernmental Agreement and Resolution are attached for review and approval by 
the Berwyn City Council, 

The Villages of North Riverside and Riverside and the City of Berwyn agree to share equally in the cost of 
the study performed by CBBEL pursuant to the CBBEL Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A Each of 
these three municipalities will pay one-third of the contract amount as set forth in Section IT of the 
CBBEL contract. TIllS cost is estimated to be $16,666.67, but the actual amount may vary from that 
amount 

Recommended Action 

Staffrecommends the City of Berwyn City Council approve the attached Intergovernmental Agreement 
and Resolution for engineering services to receive "Quiet Zone" designation for their· intersections with 
the Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad line .. 



RESOLUTION NO. 09-R-4 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE MA YDR TO-EXE€UTE AI'I 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
NORTH RIVERSIDE, BERWYN AND 

RIVERSIDE AND RETAIN 
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. 

(CBBEL) FOR THE COMPLETION OF A 
QUIET ZONE STUDY ON THE CmCAGO 

CENTRAL AND PACIFIC RAILROAD LINE 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, that the Mayor of the City of Berwyn is 

hereby authorized to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement between North Riverside, 

Riverside and Berwyn and retain CBBEL for the completion of a Quiet Zone Study on the 

Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad Line, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as 

Exhibit A and B. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th of July, 2009. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

(SEAL) 

Thomas Pavlik 
City Clerk 

Robert J Lovero 
Mayor 

North RiversidelResolution 2009IRes Auth Vill Pres Execute Inter Agrment 
7_10_09 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

This Intergovernmental Agreement is entered into on this _ day ofJuly, 2009 by 
and-between the Village of NOrth Riverside, tbe Village of Riverside, and the City of 
Berwyn, all of which are Illinois municipalities. 

WHEREAS, tbe Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad line (tbe "CCP") runs 
through tbe Villages of North Riverside and Riverside and tbe City of Berwyn (which 
will be referred to collectively as tbe "Municipalities"); and 

WHEREAS, tbere are many at-grade highway-railroad crossings along tbe CCP 
in tbe Municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, trains are required to blow tlleir horns as tlley approach each of tllese 
at-grade highway-railroad crossings; and 

WHEREAS, tbese horns are disturbing to tbe residents of tbe Municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, federal law allows tbe designation, under the proper circumstances, 
of a "Quiet Zone" witbin which trains would not be required to blow tbeir horns as tbey 
approach such crossings; and 

WHEREAS, tbe Municipalities desire to establish a Quiet Zone to include the 
crossings at Riverside Parkway, Harlem Avenue, 26th Street, Veterans Drive, 
Hainesworth A venue, Des Plaines Avenue, Cermak Road and I st A venue; and 

WHEREAS, in order to create a Quiet Zone it is necessary to first have a study 
conducted of tbe circumstances surrounding each of tbe crossings involved so tbat a 
proper analysis can be made as to whetber tbe proposed Quiet Zone satisfies federal law 
and regulations; and 

WHEREAS, tbe Municipalities previously retained Christopher R Burke 
Engineering, Ltd. (CBBEL) pursuant to a contract executed in 2008 (tbe "CBBEL 
Contract") to perform such a study and provide a report and recommendations regarding 
tbe proposed Quiet Zone; and 

WHEREAS, tbe Village of North Riverside will serve as lead agency to oversee 
CBBEL during its completion of such study and tbe preparation of such report and 
recommendations; and 

WHEREAS, tbe Villages of North Riverside and Riverside and tbe City of 
Berwyn have agreed to share tbe cost oftbe study equally, as such cost is shown in the 
CBBEL Contract previously approved by tbe Municipalities .. 

North Riversidel2009 Agreementsiintergovernmental Agreement 
7-10-09 



NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 

L The Villages of North Riverside and Riverside and the City of Berwyn 
agree to share equally in the cost of the study performed by CBBEL 
pursuant to the CBBEL Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A. Each of 
these three municipalities will pay one-third of the contract amount as set 
forth in Section II of the CBBEL contract This cost is estimated to be 
$16,666 .. 67, but the actual amount may vary from that amount The 
Village of North Riverside, as lead agency, will pay the full amount to 
CBBEL and will be reimbursed by the Village of Riverside and the City of 
Berwyn within ten (l0) days after the Village of North Riverside requests 
such reimbursement in writing .. 

2. In the event that one or more of the parties to this Agreement do not 
approve and execute this Agreement, the Village of North Riverside will 
not make payment of the full amount due under the CBBEL Contract. 

VILLAGE OF NORTH RIVERSIDE VILLAGE OF RIVERSIDE 

By: By: 
----------~--------------- -------~~~------------

President President 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

By: ____________ By: ----cc ___ --------

V illage Clerk Village Clerk 

CITY OF BERWYN 

By: _____ ~~--------------
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: ______ ~~~------------
City Clerk 

2 



I ~itY of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2567 
wwwberwyn"ilgov 

Date: August 6, 2009 

To: City Couucil and Mayor Robert Lovero 
From: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

Re: Renewal of Vehicle Insurance Service Agreement for Collision. 

We were notified by our independent insurance company - TA Cummings, that our City's physical 
damage / collision insurance is expiring August 22, 2009. Previously, our vehicular insurance was 
handled by our HR Director. Unfortunately, we found that our existing vehicular inventory wasn't 
updated, and therefore, we had to conduct an audit ofthe entire city fleet to ensure we had all 
applicable vehicles listed, and consequently, the appropriate vehicles insured. In addition, we also had 
to verify the values of the vehicles as some were incorrectly listed under $60,000 and therefore they 
were not insured. 

Per past practice, we have asked our independent insurance carrier to bid out collision coverage for all 
vehicles valued at over $60,000, and we have asked the council to therefore waive the sealed bid 
process as our independent agent solicits the bids .. In our plior insurance policy, we had only 12 
vehicles valued at over $60,000 insured; however, our recent audit revealed that this number should 
have been 20 vehicles (see attached list). Therefore, numerous expensive vehicles such as the 2008 
Crimson fire truck, valued at $500,000 were not insured. Staff also observed that we had several 
vehicles with insurance coverage that the City no longer owned. However, per my request, our 
insurance agent has immediately covered all vehicles valued over $60,000 for physical damage at no 
additional cost 

As expected, several companies refused to bid thus far; however, we have received a bid of $19,720 
(approximately $1,000 per vehicle) from The Cincinnati Insurance Company, which has the top 
insurance rating of A++, and is considered an excellent firm. While we do expect to receive at least 
one additional bid prior to the council meeting, we do not expect that the aunual premium will be less 
than $19,720. 

What appeared to be a straight forward process actually required additional time to address the issues 
listed above. Therefore, I am asking the council to waive the sealed bid process and approve the 
physical damage coverage as indicated on the bid from The Cincinnati Insurance Company in the 
amount of$19,720. It should also be noted tl1at our insurance company has extended the coverage 
until the council votes on the insurance renewaL 

2~i:M-
Brian Pabst 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:40 PM ImIll!: lill FAX No. 17732332749 

Commercial Package Policy 
The Clncinnaliinsurance Company 

, Named Insured: The City of Berwyn illinois 
Address: 6700 26TH ST, BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 
Phone Number: . 
Agency: T A CUMMINGS JR CO INC 12-218 

Package Type: Non-Discount 
NAICS Code: 921190 

Risk Type: Services 

POOl 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 Policy: CAP 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating Stat!;!: IL 

Automobile 
Total Premium 
Terrorism Coverage (Tier 2 . low Hazard) 
Total Premium 
Total Annual Premium 

Payments 

QUOTE SUMMARY 

All other + Auto/Garage" 

Semi Annual First Installment 

Remeinlng Installments 

Quarterly !,irst Installment 

Remaining Installments 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

+ $9,865 

oj. $9,865 

+ $4,935 

+ $4,935 

A $5.00 charge Is applied to each Installment. 

QUOTE SUBJECT TO FAVORABLE INSPECTION 

= 

" 

= 
c 

Total Installments 

$9,865 

$9,865 

$4,935 

$4,935 

$19,681 

$39 
$19,720 

QUOTE IS VALID FOR 60 DAYS AND SUBJECT TO NORMAL UNDERWRITING CONSIDERATIONS 

(Regional Director/State Agent Approval) 

User ID: DWILS01 

This information Is proprietary to The Cincinnati Insurance Company, its 
subsidiaries and affiliates. Please do not copy, reproduce or redlsclose it. 

Activity Date: 08/05/2009 Ratebook Date: 07/15/2009 (ILl Sum: 1 of 1 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:40 PM 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 

Vehicle 1: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 2: Tax Coda: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 3: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 4: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, It. 60402-2500 

Vehicle 5; Tax Code: 004032-

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 6: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 7: Tax Code: 004032 

6100 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 8: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 9: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 10: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

FAX No, 11132332149 

Polley: CAP 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 

ADDRESS SCHEDULE 

User 10: DWILS01 Activily Date: 08/05/2009 Ratebcck Dale: 07/15/2009 (IL) 

P 002 

Rating State: IL 

AS 1 of 2 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:40 PM IlmTAC IIll FAX No. 11132332149 P 003 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 Policy: CAP 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating State: IL 

Vehicle 11: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH sr 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 12: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 13: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH 8T 
BERWYN, IL 60402·2500 

Vehicle 14: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH 8T 
BERWYN, IL 60402·2500 

Vehtcle 15: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH 8T 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 16: Tax Code; 004032 

6700 26TH 8T 
BERWYN, IL 604022500 

Vehicle 17: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 28TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle1B: Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH ST 
BERWYN, IL 60402-2500 

Vehicle 19; Tax Code: 004032 

6700 26TH 5T 
BERWYN, IL 60402·2500 

Vehicle 20: Tax Code; 004032 

6700 26TH 5T 
BERWYN, IL 60402·2500 

User 10: DWIL501 Activity Date: 08/05/2009 Ratsbook Date: 07/15/2009 (ILl AS 2 of 2 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:40 PM IW.TlC IIll FAX No. 17732332749 

Quole: 1742270 Version: 2 Policy: CAP 5143709 Effective Dale: 0812212009 

Agency: I A CUMMINGS JR CO INC 12-218 
Insured: The Cily of Berwyn Illinois 

TERRORISM CODE SHEET 

-Slate: IL 

P 004 

Rating Stale: !L 

Policy Number. CAP 5143709 Effective: 0812212.009 

Tier: 2. 

Commercia! Aulo 
Auto Subtotal 

Hazard: Low 

Terrorism Coverage Premium $39 

User ID: PWILS01 Activity Pate: 0810512009 

Terrorism 
$39 
$39 

Ralebook Pale: 07115/2009 (ILl TE 1 of 1 



AUG-OB-2009 THU 12:40 PM iIJ£ITIC IIll FAX No. 17732332749 P 005 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 Policy: CM 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating Slale: IL 

The Cincinnati Insurance Company 
Automobile Schedule· Business Auto 

Item-Three 

Attached to and forming a part of Policy Number CM 5143709 , effective 08/22/2009 

The insurance afforded for any automobile Is only with respects to such and so many of the coverages as are 
Indicated by specific premium charge or charges Indicated. 

POLICY LIMITS 

liability: N/A 

Medical Payments: N/A 

1997 Seagrave Truck VIN#: 2025 
1 Class: 7909 OTC Comp Oed: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 

BI rD I~P I?TC I?OLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 133 1,126 N/A 
2000 Pierce Fire Engine VIN#: 0857 

2 Class: 7909 OTC Comp Oed: 5,000 Coli oed: 5,000 
BI I~D I~P I?TC I~OLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 102 817 NlA 
2008 Crimson VIN#: 9906 

3 Class: 7909 OTC Comp oed: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 
BI I~D I~P I~TC I~OLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 221 2,251 N/A 
2004 Seagrave Truck VIN#: 2082 

4 Class: 7909 OTC Camp Oed; 5,000 Coli Ped: 5, 000 
BI 1;0 I~P liTC lioLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 220 2,027 N/A 
2008 Ford Ambulance VIN#: 5038 

5 Class: 7919 01'C Comp Oed: 5,000 Coli Ded: 5.000 
BI \;D \~P 17

TC I~OLL I~M N/A NlA N/A 87 909 N/A 
2008 Ford Ambulance VIN#: 5039 

6 Class: 7919 OTe comp Oed; 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 
61 

1;0 I~P I~TC I;OLL 
IY

M 
N/A N/A N/A 76 712 N/A 
2008 Ford Ambulance VIN#: 9078 

7 Class: 7919 OTO Camp Oed: 5,000 Call Oed: 5,000 
81 

1;0 I~P I~TC I~OLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 76 712 N/A 

2005 Ford Ambulance VIN#: 960B 
8 Class; 7919 OTC Camp ped: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 

BI 1;0 I~P I~TO I~OLL I~M N/A N/A N/A 69 570 N/A 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

UM/UIM: N/A 
UMPD: N/A 

1.000/1.750 

C/N: 449,993 Terr: 113 1..000/1.140 
ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 

I I I .ITOTAL 
1,261 

CiN: 275,00'0 Terr: 113 1,000/1.140 
ZlpCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 

I 1 1 
I;OTAL 
919 

C/N: 450,000 Terr:113 1.000/1 .. 140 
ZlpCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 

I 1 I 
.. 17OTAL 

2,478 
C/N: 675,000 Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 
ZipOode: 60402 Tax: 004032 -

I I I 
I~OTAL 
2,241 

O/N: 112,407' Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 
ZipCade: 60402 Tax: 004032 

1 I I .I;OTAL 
996 

C/N: 80,000 Terr:113 . 1.000/1.140 
ZipCade: 60402 lax: 004032 

I I I 
I~OTAL 
788 

C/N: 79,697 Terr: 113 1000i1140 
ZlpOode: 60402 Tax: 004032 __ 

I 1 I 
I;OTAl 
788 

C/N: 79,697 Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 
ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 

I I I 
\:OTAL 
639 

AA21B 0306 
User 10: DWlLS01 Activity Date: 08/05/2009 Ratsbook Date: 07/15/2009 (ILl CA 1 of 3 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:41 PM FAX No· 17732332749 p. 006 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 Policy: CM 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating state: IL 

,-
1982 Seagrave Truck VIN#: 9299 O/N: 449,993 Tarr: 113 1.00011.140 

9 Olass: 7909 OTC Camp Dad: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 Zip Code: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI I~D I~P I~TC COLI:; I~M I I I I 

ITOTAL 
N/A N/A N/A 133 1,128 N/A 1,261 
1992 Seagrave Truck VIN#: 2049 C/N: 153,700' Terr: 113 1.000/1140 

10 Olass: 7909 OTC Camp Ded: 5,000 Call Oed: 5,000 ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI 

liD I~P I~TC COlL I~M I I I I I:OTAL 
N/A N/A N/A 57 371 N/A 428 
1990 Utility Back Hoe VIN#: 2297 C/N: 73,492 Terr:113 'UiOO/i140 

11 Olass: 7996 OTC Comp Oed: 5,000 0011 Oed: 5,000 Zip Code: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI 

I;D I~P I~TC COLL I~M I 1 I I I:
OTAL 

N/A N/A N/A 68 385 N/A 453 
2000 Ford F 750 VIN#: 6493 C/N: 65,000 Terr:113 1.000/1.140 

12 Class: 36199 OTC Camp Oed: 5,000 Coli Ded: 5,000 ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI 

liD I~P I~TC COLL I~M I I I I 
\iOTAL 

N/A N/A N/A 92 532 N/A 624 
2000 Sterling Dump Truck VIN#: 3616 CIN: 70,000 Terr.113 1,000/1.140 

13 Class: 40199 OTC Camp Oed: 5,000 Coli Ded: 5,000 Zip Code: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI \;0 I~P 10TC COLL I~M 

I I I I. 
I;OTAL 

N/A N/A N/A 134 712 N/A 846 
2000 Sterling Dump Truck VIN#: 3617 C/N: 70,000 Terr:113 1.0ooii.140 

14 Class: 40199 OTC Comp Dad: 5,000 Call Oed: 5,000 ZipCoda: 60402 Tax: 004032 
81 

liD I~P I~TC COlL I~M , I I I 
I:OTAL N/A N/A N/A 134 712 N/A 846 

2000 Elgin Street Cleaner VIN#: 835D C/N: 110,000 Terr: 113 1,000/1.140 
15 Class: 7996 OTC Camp Oed: 5,000 Coli Ded: 5,000 ZlpCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 

BI I~D I~P I~TC COLL I~M , 
1 I I 

I:OTAl 
N/A NIA N/A 90 577 N/A 667 
2001 Elgin Sireet Cleaner VIN#: 0240 C/N: 113,300 Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 

16 Class: 7996 OTC Comp Oed: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI 

liD I~P I~TC COLL I~M I I I I lioTAL 
N/A N/A N/A 92 595 N/A 687 
2003 Sterling Dump Truck VIN#: 3237 C/N: 74,200 T8rr:113 1.000/1 140 

17 Class: 40199 OTC Comp Ded: 5,000 Coli Oed: 6,000 ZlpCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
91 

JD I~P t~TC I~OLl I~M I I 1 I I:OTAL 
N/A N/A N/A 152 830 N/A 982 
2000 Case Wheel loader VIN#: 1256 C/N: 112,115 Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 

18 Class: 7996 OTC comp Ded: 5,000 Call Oed: 5,000 ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI 

liD I~P I~TC I~OLl \~M I I I I j:0TAL 
N/A N/A N/A 91 589 N/A 680 
2007 Elgin Sireet Cleaner VIN#: 458D C/N: 145,827 Terr: 113 1.000/1.140 

19 Class: 7996 OTC Camp Oed: 5,000 Coli Oed: 5,000 ZipCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI I~D I~P 10TC I?OLl I~M I I I J I:

OTAL 
N/A N/A N/A 154 1,302 N/A 1,456 
2007 Ford F-450 VIN#: 4377 C/N: 60,890 Terr: 113 1000/1 .. 140 

20 Class: 7996 OTC comp Oed: 5,000 Call Oed: 5,000 ZlpCode: 60402 Tax: 004032 
BI I~D rp I~TC I~OLL I~M I I I I 

lioTAl 
N/A N/A N/A 92 543 N/A 635 

AA218 0306 
User 10: DWILS01 Activity Date: 08/05/2009 RetebooK Date: 07}15/2009 (IL) CA 2 of 3 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:41 PM !llli\1!.C Jill FAX No. 17732332749 p, 007 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 Polley: CM 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating state: IL 

AA218 0306 
User 10; DWILS01 ACtivity Date: 06/05/2009 Ralebook Date; 07/15/2009 (ILl CA 3 of 3 



AUG-06-2009 THU 12:41 PM FAX No. 17J32332749 P OOB 

Quote: 1742270 Version: 2 POlicy: eM 5143709 Effective Date: 08/22/2009 Rating State: IL 

Agency: T A CUMMINGS JR CO INC 12-218 
Insured: The City of Berwyn Illinois 
Polley Number: CM 5143709 

Policy Type: 10 
Rating 10: 1 

Experience 
Expense 
Schedule 
Other 
Total RMF 

PATA ENTRY SHEET 

Rata Modification 
Liability Physical Damage 

1.000 
1.000 
1.000 
1.000 
1.000 

1.000 
1.000 
1.400 
1.250 
1.750 

State: IL 

Effective: 08/22/2009 

Rate Mod: 100/175 

User 10: DWILS01 Activity Date: 08/05/2009 RatebooK Date: 07/15/2009 (ILl DE 1 of 1 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Fl'o§1'ess with Pride= 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70S) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 
www,berwyn-ilgov 

August 6, 2009 

Honorable Robert J, Lovero, Mayor 
Aldermen of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Highway Authority Agreement 

Dear Mayor and Members of 
The Berwyn City Council: 

Enclosed please frnd a "Highway Authority Agreement" which has been reviewed by the City 
Administrator as well as the Law Department 

Weare requesting your concurrence in this matter. 

Respectfully submitted, 

a~;/.~ 
Anthony T, Bertuca 
City Attorney 

ATB/lps 



PIN #:16-31-204-014-0000 

HIGHWAY AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into this 22nd day of July, 2009 pursuant to 35 Ill. 
Adm, Code 742.1.020,by and between,the_(l) Brian Campolottara ("Owner/Operator"). 
and (2) City of Berwyn ("Highway Authority"), collectively known as the "Parties." 

WHEREAS, Brian Campolottara is the owner/operator of one or more leaking 
underground storage tanks presently or formerly located at 6545 West Stanley, Berwyn 
("the Site"); 

WHEREAS, as a result of one or more releases of contaminants [Benzene, 
Toluene, Ethyl benzene, MtBE, and Naphthalene 1 ("the Releases"), soil and groundwater 
contamination at the Site exceeds the Tier 1 residential remediation objectives of 35 IlL 
Adm, Code 742; 

'VHEREAS, the soil and/or groundwater contamination exceeding Tier 1 
residential remediation objectives extends or may extend into the Highway Authority's 
right-of-way; 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Operator is conducting corrective action in response to 
the Release(s); 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to prevent groundwater beneath the Highway 
Authority'S right-of-way that exceeds Tier 1 remediation o~jectives from use as a supply 
of potable or domestic water and to limit access to soil within the right-of-way that 
exceeds Tier I residential remediation objectives so tllat human health and the 
environment are protected during and after any access; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

L The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference as if fully set 
forth herein, 

2, The Illinois Emergency Management Agency has assigned incident 
number 900298 to the Release, 

3, Attached as Exhibit A is a scaled map(s) prepared by Brian Campolottara 
that shows the Site and surrounding area and delineates the current and 
estimated future extent of soil and groundwater contamination above the 
applicable Tier 1 residential remediation objectives as a result of the 
Release(s), 

4. Attached as Exhibit B is a table(s) prepared by Brian Campolottara that 
lists each contaminant of concern that exceeds its Tier 1 residential 
remediation objective, its Tier 1 residential remediation o~jective, and its 
concentrations within the zone where Tier 1 residential remediation 



PIN #:16-31-204-014-0000 

objectives are exceeded. The locations of the concentrations listed in 
Exhibit B are identified on the map(s) in Exhibit A. 

5. Attached as Exhibit C is a scaled map prepared.by . B]jall Campo/attara 
showing the area of the Highway Authority's right-of-way that is 
governed by this agreement ("Right-of-Way"). Because Exhibit C is not a 
surveyed plat, the Right-of-Way boundary may be an approximation of the 
actual Right-of-Way lines. 

6. The Highway Authority stipulates it has jurisdiction over the Right-of
Way that gives it sole control over the use of the groundwater and access 
to the soil located within or beneath the Right-of-Way. 

7. The Highway Authority agrees to prohibit within the Right-of-Way all 
potable and domestic uses of groundwater exceeding Tier I residential 
remediation objectives. 

8. The Highway Authority further agrees to limit access by itself and others 
to soil within the Right-of-Way exceeding Tier 1 residential remediation 
o1:Jjectives. Access shall be allowed only if human health (including 
worker safety) and the environment are protected during and after any 
access. The Highway Authority may construct, reconstruct, improve, 
repair, maintain and operate a highway upon the Right-of-Way, or allow 
others to do the same by permit. In addition, the Highway Authority and 
others using or working in the Right-of-Way under permit have the right 
to remove soil or groundwater from the Right-of-Way and dispose of the 
same in accordance with applicable environmental laws and regulations. 
The Highway Authority agrees to issue all pennits for work in the Right
of-Way and make all existing permits for work in the Right-of-Way 
subject to the following or a substantially similar condition: 

As a condition of this permit the permittee shall request the office issuing this 
permit to identify sites in the Right-of-Way where a Highway Authority 
Agreement governs access to soil that exceeds the Tier 1 residential remediation 
objectives of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 742. The permittee shall take all measures 
necessary to protect human health (including worker safety) and the environment 
during and after any access to such soil. 

As an additional consideration, Owner/Operator agrees to reimburse the City of 
Berwyn for the reasonable costs it incurs at a future time for protecting human 
heath and the environment, including, but not limited to, identifying, 
investigating, handling, storing and disposing of contaminated soil andlor 
groundwater in the right-of-way as a result of the release of contaminants at this 
site. If costs do incur, a Cashier's Check, made payable to the "City of Berwyn" 
shall be tendered to the City of Berwyn at the time the City disposes of the 
contaminated soil andlor groundwater and invoices the Owner/Operator. 



PIN #:16·31·204·014·0000 

L This agreement shall be referenced in the Agency's no further remediation 
determination issued for the Release(s). 

2. The Agency shall be notified of any transfer of jurisdiction over the Right
of-Way at least 30 days prior to the date the transfer takes effect This 
agreement shall be null and void upon the transfer unless the transferee 
agrees to be bound by this agreement as if the transferee were an original 
party to this agreement The transferee's agreement to be bound by the 
terms of this agreement shall be memorialized at the time of transfer in a 
writing ("Rider") that references this Highway Authority Agreement and 
is signed by the Highway Authority, or subsequent transferor, and the 
transferee. 

3. This agreement shall become effective on the date the Agency issues a no 
further remediation determination for the Release(s). It shall remain 
effective until the Right-of-Way is demonstrated to be suitable for 
umestricted use and the Agency issues a new no further remediation 
determination to reflect there is no longer a need for this agreement or 
until the agreement is otherwise terminated or voided. 

4. In addition to any other remedies that may be available, the Agency may 
bring suit to enforce the terms of this agreement or may, in its sole 
discretion, declare this agreement null and void if any of the Parties or any 
transferee violates any term of this agreement The Parties or transferee 
shall be notified in writing of any such declaration. 

5. This agreement shall be null and void if a court of competent jurisdiction 
strikes down any part or provision of the agreement 

6. This agreement supersedes any prior written or oral agreements or 
understandings between the Parties on the subject matter addressed herein. 
It may be altered, modified or amended only upon the written consent and 
agreement ofthe Parties. 

7. Any notices or other correspondence regarding this agreement shall be 
sent to the Parties at following addresses: 

Manager, Division of Remediation Management 
Bureau of Land 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, IL 62974-9276 

Contact at Highway Anthority 

Property Owner/Operator: 

Brian Campolottara 
6247 W. 26th. 
Beoyyn. II 60402. 



PIN #:16-31-204-014-0000 

Brian Pabst 

City Administrator (Bel1wn) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this agreement to be signed by their 
duly authorized representatives. 

City of Berwyn 

Date: 

By: Brian Pabst 

Its: City Administrator 

Property OWner/Operator 

Date: By: 

Its: 
Title 



Exhibit A 



Residential Properties 

Alley 
---'-'---'---'-.-._'--_--0_-_"_'_._--._0_.-, 

• I 
• I · . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
· i · . 
• I 
· i · . 
• I 
· i · . 
• I 
• I 

• I 
• I · . 

(j) 
:J 

• I 
• I 

C 
U) g; 
(j) « 'E ..... 
OJ '" 0. 0 
Q LU 

• I 
· i 
• I 
• I 

• I 
Q.. • I 
0 

:;:: 
· . 
• I 

C 
OJ 
0 
°iE 
ex 

r---------- O

.---------~ , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , c, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,-, , , , , , 
) ff~ 

,,' /' 
, " " , , , 

,/1' "./' , , 

Subject 
Property 

.( " \. " 

I ~ • . / 

Highway Aulhorily Map of Restricted Area 
for contaminants 

Client: Fleet Care 
Site location: 6545 Stanley AVe" Berwyn,IL 

'... ,/ 
''''... ,;" , , 

v 

Res ° cted Alea 

Project #03067 J 
Drawn by KG 
Date: 6/27/06 

.~ 

••••••••••• EJecOic 
.••.. Water 

Gas 

. . 1421 N. E1stonAve 
Gabriel Envlromnental Servlces Chicago,IL 60622 

phone (773) 486-2123 
fax (77 3) 486-0004 

! 

1" : 20' 



Exhibit B 



Tier 2- Analytical Comparison Table 
6545 West Stanley, Berwyn, lL 

I· ••. · •....• ·],hr~.~~ier:I~~;(t11~l{~;.l·I:~1~I!WJ,}~I~fi~MI~~~~·,If(f;,j·11·i~~~;·:lr%~\;~~·JI~i~~~~·~l~IJ~~~~nF·· 
Benzene i'O.954'i!.O,113·11U181 ND 1 ND ND ND 1 ND 1 ••• 29.121 '0.0675 
Ethylbenzene 4.160 0.094 0.162 ND ND ND ND ND ••• 678.40" 55.18 
Toluene 0.036 ND 0.024 ND ND ND ND ND ... J095.88· 39.96 

Total Xylencs 0.930 0.024 0.197 ND ND ND ND ND ••• 541.83' 541.83' 
MTBE ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ND ••• ... 0.199 
Naphthalene 0.333 0.016 BRL ND ND ND ND ND ... 6e7.41~ S9.97 

.; '.P~r.meter: .": D;5J8'i~;~ ~ :ttrJ ;f;.j· . ft.;'; ;~ThW-f :m~; d6~:~~~;~ ~~;;'~;hl)[~~ti~~~l~dJ?' 
Benzene ND ND ND ND ND NO ND ••• 29.12 0.0675 
EthyJbenzene NO ND ND ND ND ND NO ••• 400' 55.18 
Toiuene ND NO ND NO ND ND ND ... 650' 39.96 

Totai Xyienos ND ND ND NO NO ND ND ... 320' 320' 
MTBE ND ND ND - I ••• ••• 0.199 

Naphthalene NO NO NO ND ND! NO NO ••• 667.41" 59.97 

Units '" mglkg 

.. ". '" Not Cuiculatca 
nOLO"" Result Excccds Tier 2 ROs 

• "" Csat value used because TIer 2 RO calculation greater than Csa! value of parameter {Value based S~29 equation utmzlng site specific mformatlon I 



Exhibit C 



Tier 2 Benzene Exceedance Plume Map 
Client: Fleet Care 
Site location: 6545 Stanley Ave., Berwyn, IL 

Project #030671 
Drawn by PB 
Date: 11114/08 

Predicted concentration of benzene 
over 0005 mg/kg using R26 

Gabriel Environmental Services 
1421 N .. Elston Ave 
Chicago, IL 60622 

phone (773) 486·2123 
fax (773) 486-0004 1": 200' 

Ii 
I 



Modeled MtBE Plume Map 
Client: Fleet Care 
Site location: 6545 Stanley Ave, Berwyn, lL 

Project #080700 
Drawn by PB 
Date: 11114/08 

Predicted concentration ofMtBE 
over 0 320 mgikg using R26 

., . 1421N.EIstonAve 
Gabnel EnvIronmental Servlces Chica o,IL 60622 

phone (773) 486-2123 
fax (773) 486-0004 1" : 500' 



o 
~ 
:::J 
U c 
:::::::::. 
o o -= (j) 

E 
E o o 

Modeled Toluene Plume Map 
Client: Fleet Care 

:f'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'l 
• . I 
:: r n _- ------------ ~~ 
• • 1 
• I 1 

1 
. "I I 

• • 1 
01 1 

1 
1 • I · . 1 
1 
1 • I 
1 
1 • I · . 1 

• I 

: ! 
1 
'1 

Subject 
Property 

~[6545 Stanley Ave.) 

• I 
• I .. 
• I 
• I · . 

• I 

• I 
· i · . 
• I 
• I · . 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
I 
1 
I 
1 
I 
1 , , , , , , , , , , , 

Modeled Toluene 
/plurpEJ' by R26 

, 

••••••••••• Electric 

Site location: 6545 Stanley Ave., Berwyn, IL 

Project #080700 
Drawn by PB 
Date: 11/25/08 Water 

Gns 

Gabriel Environmental Services 1421 N. ~~to6~~;; phone (773) 486-2123 
fax 486-0004 



, .. 
e 
~. 

(!) ~. 

CI :J n.: c 
Q) 

05 ~ 
'E 
OJ ts 
D- O 
Q w 
n-
0 

"'" c; 
OJ 
'0 
"in 
OJ 
0:: 

· r'-· . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
· i 
• I 
· i · . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 

: ~ 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
· i · . 
• I · I · . 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
• I · , 
• I 
• I · . 
• I 
• I · . / 

Residential Properties 

Alley 

r-------------------
I 
I , 
I 
I 
I 
I , , 
I , 
I 
I 
I , , 
I , 
I L, 

"",t" 

, , , , , 
I , , , 
I , 
I , 
I 
I , , 
I 
I 
I , 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I , 

-' 

• I " \ Modeled Ethyl-
" , · i 

. . ",-' 
.. -. ~ ..... ,., 

: i /--'--. 
.. ~'/ ,/""" 

/:! ( UST'" 
"I " \ 
•. ' .... area > 
" I '\. ... . \ / 
• I \./ · . · I · I · · I · I • · I • I 

" · :.-.. 

Modeled Ethylbenzene Map using R26 
Client: Fleet Care 
Site location: 6545 Stanley Ave., Berwyn, IL 

"" / benzene plume 
v 

~.-- using R26 

Project #080700 
DrawnbyPB 
Date: 1lI25108 

........ " .... ".. Electric 
• " , •• Waler 

Gas 

.. ' 

Gabriel Environmental Services 
1421 N. Elston Ave 
Chicago, IL 60622 

phone 
fax 

(773) 486-2123 
(773) 486-0004 1": 20' 



o 
-;::: 

1;; 
::::J 
"D c -o o 
-;::: 

CD 
E 
E o o 

!=-=,--

Modeled Naphthalene Plume Map 
Client: Fleet Care 

• 1 · . 
.I 

· i · . 
.I 

• 1 · . 
.I 

· i · . 
" · . 
.I 

· i · . 
.I 

• I 

.I 

'1 · . 
· i ! •. 
• I 

• I · . 
.I 

· i · . 

_._._._._._._._.-.-._.-._.'_.-

r'--'--"-------'-- -, , , 
I , 
I , , , , 
I 
I 
I , , , 
" 

, 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I , 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I , , , 
I 
I , 
I 

Mode Nap 
byR26 

Project #080700 
Dlawn by PB ........... Eleclric 

Site location: 6545 Stanley Ave., Berwyn, IL Date: 11/25/08 Water 

Gabriel Environmental Services 1421 N. Elston Ave 
IL 60622 1"; 20' 



Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Yride 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2,675 
www,berwyn-il"gov 

August 6, 2009 

Honorable Robert 1. Lovero, Mayor 
Aldermen of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: PTAB Resolution 

Dear Mayor and Members of 
the Berwyn City Council: 

Enclosed please fInd a resolution authorizing the City of Berwyn to intervene in Property Tax Appeal 
Board proceedings. The Resolution also authorizes Attorney Elizabeth Shine Hermes ofthe law flIm 
of Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. to act as our legal representative. 

The Law department is requesting your concurrence in this matter. 

Respectfully submitted, 

IZd.6;l~ 
~~:;~ertuca 
City Attorney 

ATB/lps 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 

NUMBER __________ __ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
AUTHORIZING INTERVENTIONS IN PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE STATE OF 

ILLINOIS PROPERTY TAX APPEAL BOARD 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODOREJ.POLASHEK 
RAFAEL AVILA 

NORALAURETO 
Alderman 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk oflhe City of Berwyn on 081 109 
City of Berwyn - 6700 West 26'" Street - Berwyn, Illinois 60402 



RESOLUTION NUMBER ____ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
AUTHORIZING INTERVENTIONS IN PROCEEDINGS BEFORE 

THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PROPERTY TAX APPEAL BOARD 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City"), is a duly organized 

and existing municipal corporation created under the provisions of the laws of the State of Illinois 

and under the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code, as from time to time supplemented and 

amended; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a duly authorized and existing taxing body authorized by law to 

levy ad valorem taxes on all real property within its corporate boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, an owner of real property located within the boundaries of the City has the 

right to file an appeal of the assessment of real estate taxes with the State of Illinois Property I ax 

Appeal Board (the "PTAB ") seeking a reduction in the assessed value of real property; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the right to intervene in certain proceedings before the PI AB in 

order to protect its revenue interest in the assessed valuation of real property within its corporate 

boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is appropriate to intervene in certain 

proceedings before the PIAB in order to protect its revenue interest in the assessed valuation of 

real property while maintaining its diverse tax base; and 

WHEREAS, the City has further determined that it is in the best interest of the taxpayers 

of the City to intervene in certain appeals for purposes of protecting the tax base of the City for the 

benefit of its residents. 

2 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section L That the above recitals and legislative findings are found to be true and correct 

and are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2. The City hereby authorizes Attorney Elizabeth Shine Hermes of the law firm of 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd., as its legal representative, to file a request to intervene in an appeal 

proceedings with the PT AB with respect to an appeal filed by an owner ofreal property for which 

the City receives notice and that Elizabeth Shine Hermes of Odelson & Sterk, Ltd., is hereby 

further authorized to represent the interest of the City in any such proceeding and subsequent 

settlement thereof: 

Section 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any other provision ofthis Resolution. 

Section 4. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Resolution 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

(Intentionally Left Blank) 

3 



I 

PASSED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

__ day of August, 2009, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

I YES I NO I ABSTAIN I ABSENT I PRESENT I 
CHAPMAN 

BOYAJIAN 

PAUL 

SKRYD 

SANTOY 

POLASHEK 

AVILA 

LAURETO 

MAYOR LOVERO 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this 

day of August, 2009. 

ATTEST: 

THOMAS 1. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

ROBERT 1 LOVERO 
MAYOR 

4 



We Serve and Protecl 

August 5, 2009 

BERWYN 
PElbleE BEPARTMENT 

6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

Mayor Robert l Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26tll Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Request for hiring of three officers 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Berwyn Police Department, in its continuing effort to provide the citizens of Berwyn 
a safe community in which to live, work and play, is respectfully requesting your 
approval for the hiring of one officer as agreed upon in the Budget and two officers to fill 
vacancies created by one resignation and one retirement 

Thank you for your prompt attention and consideration of this request 

Respectfully, 

~~ WilliamRK~ 
Chief of Police 

WRKlmd 



We Serve and Protect 

August 5, 2009 

BERWYN 
rableE BErARTMENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

Mayor Robert l Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, 1L 60402 

RE: Promotion of Officer Thomas Slayd 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please be advised that Berwyn Police Officer Thomas Slayd has been promoted to tlle 
rank of Sergeant in the Berwyn Police Department 

Officer Slayd's appointment was effective July 23,2009. 

Respectfully submitted, 

William R. Kuslmer 
Chief of Police 

WRK!md 



Board of 
Fire & Police Commissioners 

6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT 1. LOVERO 
POLlCE CHIEF WILJAM KUSHNER 
ALD. RALPH AVILA, CHAIRMAN FIRE & POLICE COMMITTEE 
CITY CLERK THOMAS PAVUK 
CITY TREASURER JOSEPH KROC 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

JULY 21,2009 

RE: APPOINTMENT 

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT THE BOARD OF FIRE AND POLlCE 
COMMISSIONERS IN A CONFERENCE CALL ON JULY 20,2009, CONFIRMED 
THE APPOINTMENT OF OFFICER THOMAS SKRYD, TO SERGEANT, 
EFFECTIVE RETROACTIVE TO FEBRUARY 1,2009. 

IHE BOARD WISHES THE SERGEANT WELL IN HIS NEW ENDEAVOR. 

BERWYN FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 

~lj~ k~~t:fJ{ 
ANTON ADOLF CARL REINA RICK TOMAN 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Patrick J. Ryan 
Public Works Director 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (70S) 49"4700 Fax: (70S) 749"9503 
www.berwyn-iLgov 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero and City Council Members 

Patrick J. Ryan, Director 

August 6, 2009 

Declaration of Surplus Property 

The City has two sweepers from the 1990's which are nonfunctional and have been stripped off all 
useable parts, These sweepers are taking up useable storage space and should be declared surplus for 
disposal. 

City ordinances require the Finance Director draft a resolution declaring these items surplus and set 
forth the method of their disposal. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends the City Council allow the Finance Director draft a resolution declaring these items 
surplus and set forth the method of their disposal. 



ASSET PROFILE FORM 
City of Berwyn Fleet Department Sorted By: Asset 10 

Asset 10: M-22PV 
Master Asset: 

Asset Type: SWEEPER 
Assets Group:PUBLIC WORKS 

Category:VEHICLES 
Description:Elgin Sweeper 6/98 

Budget 10: 1 00-26-37-5400 

User 1: 
User 2: 
User 3: 
User 4: 

Warranty: 

Specificatiol1s: 

schedules: 

Schedule Type: INSPECTION 
Cycle Type: Miles 
Cycle Rate:3000 

Description Of Work: 

Serial Number: S8702D 
Vendor: 

Purchase Date: 111711998 
Purchase CostO.OO 

Manufacturer: Elgin 
Model: Pelican SE 

User Defined Fields 

UserS: 
UserS: 
User1: 
UserS: 

A 

Last Completion Date: 3/19/2008 
LastWO 10: 

Supersedes: 

User 9: 
User 10: 
User 11: 
User 12: 

% Till Due:O% 

Page 1 of1 
8/6/2009 



ASSET PROFILE FORM 
City of Berwyn Fleet Department Sorted By: Asset 10 

Asset 10: M-21 PV 
Master Asset: 

Asset Type:SWEEPER 
Assets Group: PUBLIC WORKS 

Category: VEHICLES 
Description: Elgin Sweeper 8-97 

Budget 10: 1 00-26-37-5400 

User 1: 
User 2: 
User 3: 
User 4: 

Warranty: 
Specifications: 

SChedules: 

Schedule Type: INSPECTION 
Cycle Type: Miles 
Cycle Rate: 3000 

Description Of Work: 

Serial Number:S8574D 
Vendor: 

Purchase Date: 111/1997 
Purchase Cost:O.OD 

Manufacturer: Ergin 
Model: Pelican Se 

User Defined Fields 

UserS: 
User 6: 
User7: 
UserS: 

A 

Last Completion Date: 311912008 
lastWO 10: 

Supersedes: A 

User 9: 
User 10: 
User 11: 
User 12: 

% Till Due: 0% 

Page 1 of 1 
8/5/2009 



/ /1 
f. \ Robert J. Lovero 
~ Mayor 

A C'A1ntury of Progress with Pride 

John Wysocki 
Finance Director 

6·700 West 26" StreBt Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 F",,: (708) 788·'0273 
www beIwyn~il gOY 

To: Mayor Robelt Lovero and the City Council 

From: John Wysocki 

Date: August 7, 2009 

Subject: Communication from Sikich 

Attached is a communication which our auditms, 8ikich, are required by professional auditing standards to 
provide to City Council discussing the 2008 audit Dan Berg, a partner with Sikicb, will be at the Committee 
of the Whole meeting to review the report and answer any questions that you may have 



Certified Public Accountants & Advisors 

998 Corporate Boulevard· Aurora, IL 60502 

May21,2009 

Io the City Council 
c/o John Wysocki 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

Members of AmeriC3n Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants & 

Illinois CPA Society 

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmentaI activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund inforIilation of CitY of Berwyn for the year ended December 31, 2008, 
and have issued oUI report thereon dated May 21, 2009. Professional standar'ds require that we 
provide you with the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated November 13,2008, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by 
management with yOUJ oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. OUJ audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of yOUJ responsibilities. 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements 

We applied certain limited procedUJcs to the required supplementary information (RSI) (pension 
trend information, managements' discussion and analysis and budget versus actual for major 
funds) included in the AFR. However, those procedures were less in scope than an audit, 
accordingly, we have not expressed an opinion on the RBI. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit accor ding to the planned scope and timing previously co=urucated to 
you in OUJ meeting about plarining matters on December 10, 2008 

630 M 566MB400 ., (FAX] 630 M S66-6401 • www slkich com 

Slklch LLP 



City ofBerwyn 
May 21, 2009 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Page 2 

Management is responsible fOl the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies In 
accOidance with the terms of OUI engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and then application The significant accounting policies 
used by City of Berwyn are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed dUIing 2008. We 
noted no nansactions entered into by the governmental unit dUIing the year for which there is a 
lack of authoritative guidance 01' consensus 1here are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occUIred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management's koowledge and experience about past and CUllent events and 
assumptions about futUIe events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their sigoificance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that futUIe events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected We noted no particularly sensitive 
estimates made by management during our audit of the financial statements 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in perfOlming and 
completing OUI audit 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

PIDfessional standards requiI·e us to accumulate all known arld likely misstatements identified 
dUIing the audit, other than those that are nivial, and cornmunicate them to the appropriate level 
of management Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the 
misstatements detected as a result of audit pIOcedmes and conected by management were 
material, either individualiy or in the aggregate, to the financial stateIllents taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For pllIposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
finallcial accounting, repOlting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to OUI satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's repOlt. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose dUIing the COllIse of OUI audit 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included iIl the 
management representation letter dated May 21, 2009. 



City of Belwyn 
May 21, 2009 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

Page 3 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the goveIIllilental unit's financial 
statements Ol a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts, To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with othel accountants 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year priOl to retention as the governmental unit's 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention 

Ihis infOlmation is intended solely for the use of the Membels of the Board of Trustees and 
management of the City of Berwyn and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties 

Since 'ely, 

SikichLLP 
By: Daniel A. Berg, CPA 
Partner 



EHECTS SCHEDUlE 
City of Berwyn GOVERNMENTWTDE 

(CLIENT) (FUND OR FUND TYPE) 

For tbe Year Ended 1213112008 

All entries posted as Debit (Credit) 

(Retained 
WorJ..-papcr EarningsJFund (Profit) 

Description Reference Assets (Liabilities) Bnlnnce) Loss 

CUrrent Effect of Prior Period Passed AJE1s that 
have carried forward to Current Period $ $ $ (26,574.80) 26,574.80 

To record the variance between the estimnte and actual 
for FY07 sales tux revenue ." S.l1 ---- 16,113.08 (16,113.08) 
To record the effect of under estimate ofPY tclecom 
tux receivable reversed in FY08 S.14 (115,241.54) 115,241.54 
To record the effect of under estimate ofPY income 
tax receivable reversed in FY08 S.12 (28,90927) 28,909.27 
To record the effect ofFY07 MFT high growth 

recorded in FY08 S.13 34,769.00 (34,769.00) 
Unrecorded liability ~ software 

K.IO (20,000.00) 20,000.00 
To record the effett ofFY07 MFT high growth 

recorded in FY08 S.13 -'- (34,769.00) 34,769.00 

---- -'-- ----

lotals 
$=-=~$ (20,000.00) S (154,612.53) $=~1.:;74:.,6~1;;2.;;53" 



EFFECTS SCHEDULE 

City of Berwyn 
(CLIENT) 

for the Yeur Ended 

All entries posted lIS Debit (Credit) 

Description 

Current Effect of Prior Period Passed AlE's Ihat 
have carried forward to Current Period 
To record the variance between the estimnte nod actual 

Wod,-paper 
Reference 

forFYOi sai;;':im'~ue~" S.1l 
To record the effect of under estimate afPY te1ecom 
tnx recelvable reversed in FY08 8.14 
To record the effect of under estimate ofPY income 
tax receivable reversed in FY08 
To record thecffecl ofFY07 MFt high growth 

recorded in FY08 
Unrecorded liability ~ softwnre 

-----------

S.12 

S.13 

K.IO 

----------------- ------

lotals 

$==~=$ 

GENERAL 
(FUND OR FUND TYPE) 

12131/2008 

(20.000.00) $ (93,268.73) $ ===1",13",,2;;;6;;;,8.;;;73;., 



EFFECTS SCHEDUlE 

DescIiption 

Current Effect of PIlor Period Passed Affils that 
have canied forward to Current PeJiod 

To record the effect ofFY071v1FT high growth 
recorded in FY08 

Totals 

City ofBeIWYn 
------.----~~==F_---------'(CLJEN'I) 

For the Year Ended 1213112008 

All cntIies posted ns Debit (Credit) 

Wmkpllpcx 
Reference 

S.13 

Assets (Liabilities) 

$_--_$ --_$ 

-------

$==~~=$~==~-$ 

NO~OROOVERNMENIAL 

(FUND OR FUND TYPE) 

(Retnined 
Eantings/F\Jlld 

Balance) 
(profit) 
Loss 

(26.574.80) $ __ --=2:;,6.::,57:,.:4:;:.8;:..0 

(34.769.00) 34.769.00 

(61.343.80) $ __ ..;.61;.:;.3;.;4;;;3.;;;80,= 



city f B 0 erwyn 
YearEnd: December31,200S Prepared by Reviewed by G,5,1 A 
Adjusting Journal EntrIes 
Dnte: 1/1/200B To 12131/2008 "'" DAB 

6/17/2009 6/231;!:009 

Number Date Nam. AccounlNo Reference Annotation Dab!t Credit Recurrence 

1213112008 DEFERRED BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 91-1-00-1794 no 27486100 
12131/2008 DEFERRED LOSS ON REf\JNOING 9M..()O.179591*0 158733900 
1213112006 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 91·2·00.290091..(3 228908200 
12/3112008 DEFERRED CHARGE ~ BOND PREMIUM 91·2.()Q...291Q 91·G 242073000 
12131noDa CLAlMS PAYABLE~ l.ONG TERM 91-2..QO..2922 91..(3 285647500 
12/3112006 NET PENSION QBUGATION 91*2.o().292391·G 18115800 
1213112008 NET OPES OI3L1GATION 9H-OQ...292491 .. G 33757500 
1213112006 IMRF EARLY RETlREMEtIT OBUGA1l0N 91 .. 2-OQ.29ZS 91·G 99417300 
1213112006 GEN OaUGATION BONDS 91·2-O(}..293Q 91..0. 84505000 00 
12/3112ooB CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS PAYABLE 91·2"()o'293291.o 179239700 
1213112008 CAPITAl lEASE PAYABLE • WHEEL LOADER 91-2-00-2934 91..0 7491500 
1213112008 SEOGEWICK NOTE PAYABLE 91·2..oo.2Q3791.o 166797500 
1213112008 VOIGT NOTE PAYABLE 91.2:06.Zo38 91~ 570262.00 
121311ZooB CAPITAL lEASE PAYABLE· STREET SweEP 91·2-00-293991..0 14361400 
1213112008 CAPITAL lEASE PAYABLE .. AMBULANCES 91-2.()O.2941 Dl-G 9968700 
1213112008 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 91·Z.QO.2.!I50 91.0 27237561 
121311200B FUND BALANCE 91·3-00-3000 91..0 9632929961 

To record opening bnlanCM 10 Fund 
91" GlTDAG os of 1l1/Z00B 

2 12J311Z00B Bond Proceeds 91·o..(lO.905091·G 783000000 
2 1213112008 Paym~nt to refundod bond oscrow 91·I)..(lO .. 90S4 91·G 7.379125 00 
2 121311200B BONO DISCOlJNT 91·0-00-919491·G 64 09500 
2 1213112008 DEFERRED lOSS ON REFUNDING 91·1·QO..179591·G 209125 00 
2 12/3112.008 DEFERRED LOSS ON REFUNDING 91-1-00-179591 .. G 22714500 
2 1213112008 UNAMORTIZED BOND DISCOUNT 91·1·0CH79691·G 6249400 
2 1213112006 DEFERRED CHARGE. BOND PREMIUM 91-2--00-2910 91 .. G 24343600 
2 121311200B NET PENSION OBLIGATION 91 .. z.oo.292391·G 110 605 00 
2 12/3112006 NET OPEB OBUGATION 91·2·00-2924 91·G 39504200 
2 12131J2008 GEN OBUGATION BONDS 91-2-00-2930 91·G 763000000 
2 1213112006 GEN OBUGATION BONDS 91·2-00.2930 91·G 71700DOOO 
2 121311200!J GEN OBUSATION BONDS 91-2-O(}.293091·G sao 000 00 
2 1213112006 CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS PAYABLE DH-OO-293291·G 0076000 
2 1213112008 SEOGEWiCK NOTE PAYABLE 91·2-OCJ.293791·G 15516100 
2 1213112009 VOIGT NOTE PAYABLE 91·2-OCJ.293891·G 7435900 
2 121J1flOO8 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABl.E 91·2-00·2950 91-<3 5938200 
2 1213112008 Prlnclple Pe)lfflents 91-5-0o..90OC 91·G 229.52000 
2 1213112003 Prlnc!plo Peyments 91·5-00-0000 91·G 58000000 
2 1213112006 Interea! Expenso 91·5-00-001091-6 90760,00 
2 12/3112006 Intcre:ll Expense 91.5-00-901091-G 59382,00 
2 1213112006 Amort/uillon· Bond PremIUm 91-5 .. 00-979591.0 24343500 
2 12f31120D8 AmortlzIltkln· Refunding lOU5 91·5-00-9700 91-G 22714500 
2 1213112006 AMORTIZATlON- BOND OISCOUNT 91-5-00-979891-G 160200 
2 1213112006 GENERAl GOVERNMENT PAYROU, 91-5-01·5000 91·G 39504200 
2 1213112006 PUBLIC SAFETY PAYROLL 91-5-07·5700 91·G 11060500 

To record flseal2006 trolUoeUons 
In Fund 91. GlTDAG 

3 1213112006 FUND BAL.ANCE 11-3-0G-3000 11·G 3476900 
3 12/3112006 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 11+O(J..463511·G 3476900 
3 1Z131J2000 MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND BALANCE 79-:H)(}..3()00 7G-MFT 34 769 00 
3 1213112006 MFT· STATE ALLOTMENT 70-4.()(J..4510 7e.·MFT 3478900 

CLIENT ENTRY· To rovonn, PPA for 
FYrrt MFT hlgh growth rO!:llrded In !he DDflOml fund 

• 1213112008 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 8B-4-()Q...4102 aa.PP 5641920 

• 1213112008 CONTRIBUTIONS· PRIOR YEAR 88+00-4451 SIJ..PP 1456959 

• 1213112006 OTHER MEMBER REVENUE BB+OO-445281J..PP 4364961 

To rec!nss poll:=e pension Imnnfer 
OfSCNico 

5 1213112006 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE B0-2-Oo..Z100 SO-WAS 411900 

5 12/3112008 WATER & SEWER ~ POSTAGE MACHINE lEA 60·,5-00-5650 SO-WAS 411900 

7/2112D09 
3:30 PM Pogo 



f City 0 Serwyn 
Year End: December 31, 2008 Prepared by Reviewed by G 51 A-1 
Adjusting Journal Entries 
Dale: 1/1/2008 To 12131/2008 "'" DAB 

6/11/2009 GfZ3J2009 

Number Date Name AccQUntNo Reference AnnotaUon DebIt Credit Recurrence 

Client enlty - To COITCclllc:coun!s 
pnyabte 

, 1213112.008 COMPENSATED ABSeNCeS S0-1..()Q.2900 BO-WAS 2314100 , 1213112008 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 60-2..00-2100 BO-WN5 21033.00 
6 1213112006 WATER &SEWER-StCKDAY BUYBACK BO-s..oo-S120 so-WAS 210600 

CUENT ENTRY: To record current 
yOW' Compensated Abncnces 

7 1213112008 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 91-2..{)().290091-G 57811100 
7 12/31/2008 COMPENSATEDAElSENCeS 91· 2·00-2900 {H·G G9 373 00 

7 1213112008 FUND BALANCE 91~3-00-300Q 91.(; 57811100 
7 1213112008 CHANGE IN COMP ASS - GEN GOVT 9105·01·5001 91.(3 10402.00 
7 121311ZOO8 CHANGE IN COMP ASS· PS 91·&-07-5701 91-G 4522000 
7 12/3112008 PUBUe WORKS PAYROlL 91·S.,1tHiOOO 91·G 223000 
7 1213112000 CULTURE AND REC PAYROLL 91·5-22-5220 Bl·G 9526600 
7 1213112008 ECONOMIC DEV PAYROLL 91-5-28-5200 91·G 8374500 

To recon::l currant year compensBted 
ebaancB3 activity In tho GITOAG 

8 12J31flOOB DUE FROM CITY 68-1..(l().·1eOO 8e-PP 34 81375 
8 1213112008 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE e8-4-00-410288-PP 34 813 75 

To record police pension pmpor1y 
tax reVCflUe rocolved after 12131/08 foc 2007 levy 

• 12/31n008 PROPERTY TAX RE.CEIVABLE - GENERAL 11-1-00-1500 1l·G 1825100 
9 12/31/2008 DUE 'TO FIRE PENSION 11-2-OO-1eS91l-G 7 lOa 54 
8 12J31flOOB POUCE PENSION PAVABLE lH.()().2280 11·G 1030045 
9 12/3112009 PROPERTY TAXES (CITY) 11-4-00-4102 11·G 84201 

CLIENT ENTRY - To COffect the 
property lax payments duo 10 tho ponce and ()I'(I penSion 

10 12131rzOO8 DUE FROM GENERAL 99.1·00-181169-FP 710854 
10 1213112008 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 99+00-410289.FP 7 lOB 54 

To record fre pension due from 
city for Fabronry 2009 property lax receipts 

11 1213112008 CASH· CHECKING 75-1-O()'·112075-FA 671 
11 1213112008 CASH- CHECKING 75-1·00-1120 7S-FFI 51518 

11 1213112008 CASH- CHECKING 75-1·,00·1120 75-FFI 16921 DB 

11 1213112006 CASH- CHECKING 75-1.00-1120 75-FFI 209172 

11 12/3112008 FOR8GN FIRE INSURANCE TAX 75-4-00-4020 75-FA 203284S 

11 12/3112006 FOREIGN FIRE - ontER GENERAl EXPENSE '15-5-00-5300 75·FFI 671 
11 1213112008 FOREIGN FIRE ~ OTIiER GENERAL EXPENSE 75-5-00-5300 75-FFI 51618 

11 1213112008 FOREIGN FIRE· OntER GENERAL EXPENSE 75-5-00-5300 75-FFI 340737 

11 12/3112008 FOREIGN FIRE·, OntER GENERAL EXPENSE 75-5-00-5300 75-FFI 782 

11 12131/2008 FOREIGN FIRE ~ SUPPUES 75-5-(l0-530575-fA 208DB 

11 1213112008 FOR8GN FIRE· DUESfSUBSCRIPTlONS 75-5-Q0-54oo 75·FA 188204 

To IIdju,110rolgn fim Insumnce 

'''' .. 
12 1213112008 ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBTS 11~1·.(lO-t32511·G B 2 2916007 

12 12131/2:008 PARNJiEOIC COlLECTIONS 11-4..()0-4325 11·-0 B 2 29166.67 

To edJUlll the shawanee fer bad 
dobt fer the parumad""1C collections fOr JI1IlUB/y 2008 

13 1213112006 BUILDINGS 9O-1·00-17009Q..G 11 ZOOS11 00 

13 12131/2008 ACCUM OEPR ~ BUILDINGS 9O-1.oo-1702DD-G 2672,578,83 

13 1213112008 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 90-l..Q0-111090-G 755 99197 

13 1213112008 FURNITURE &. AXTURES SO-1·QO-1720 OO-G 21321500 

13 1213112008 ACCUM OEPR - FURNITURE. & AXTURES 90-1 .. 0Q..1722 OO-G 9546185 

1J21fZQ09 
3:30 PM P",. 2 



ely f E! I 0 arwyn 
YearEnd: December31,200a Prepared by RevIewed by G 5 .. 1. A·2 
Adjusting Journal Entries 
Date: 111'200$ To 12131{2oo8 ".. DAB 

6/17/2009 G/2.3J200S 

Number Dab> Name Account No Reference Annotaflon Dublt Credit Recurrence 

13 1213112008 MJ\CH1NERY &. EQUIPMENT 90.1-[>o-17409!J.G 1407390.00 
13 1213112008 ACCUM OEPR ~ EQUIPMENT eO-1-00-1142 Go.o 63712017 
13 1213112008 VEHICLES SO-Ho-1750 9D-O 5.53208600 
13 12/3112008 ACCUM DEPR· VEHICLES BI).1oQa-175290-G 328213200 
13 12/3112008 LAND 90-1-OQ..17609iJ..G 9234 218 00 
13 121311Z00a LAND IMPROVEMENTS 9O-i--C1()'1770 9Q.G 354767164 
13 12f31flooa ACCUM DEP~ LAND IMPROVEMENTS 9O-1-OQ..17729Q.G zznm30 
13 12/3112006 INFRASTRUCTURE 9O-1..oQ..1180 9O-G 52 379715 95 
13 12131f2.00a ACCUM DEPR~ INFRASTRUCTURE 90-1-00-1782 1lO-G 20819497.88 
13 1213112008 FUND BAlANCE UQ...3.O()-JOQO 1lD-G 5449199153 

To record prtoryear GFMG at:UI/ity 

" 1Zt311200S BUILDINGS S0-1-00-1100 90-0 310121 22 
I. 1V311200B ACCUM DEPR· BUIl.DINGS 00-1-0G-170290-0 28007100 
I. 1213112008 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 90-1-0G-1710 90-0 437548703 

14 1213112008 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 9G-1-0G-1710 OO-G 59656022 
14 1213112008 MACHINERY & EQUIpMENT 90-1..00-17<\0 9G-G 364 04554 

" 
12/3112006 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 90-1-OO-17409Q.G 18500000 

I. 12/3112006 ACCtJM OEPR ~ EQUIPMENT 9G-1..Q(}..11429Q.G 1313Z1 00 
I. 12/311Z00S ACCUM DEPR- EQUIPMENT 90-1-00-1742. 90-0 20396600 

" 
1213112008 VEHICLES 00-1-00-175090-0 0157 230 05 

I. 12/31nOOS VEHICLES 9().,1...oG-1750aQ.G 60888100 

" 
12/3112008 ACCUM OEPR" VEHICLES 9D-1..(}().-1752 BGoG 57332400 

14 1213112008 ACCUMOEPR-VEHICLES 90.1-00-175290-0 <\54 2013 00 
14 121311Z00a LAND 90.'-00-1160 eO-O 467 52095 

14 1213112008 LAND IMPROVEMENTS O(l.-l·00-17100(}"O 339.5488a 
I. 12/31/2008 ACCUM DEP-lAND IMPROVEMENTS 9(}..1-00.1772 9Q.G 21969600 

" 12!3112~INFRA$TRUCTURE 90-1-00-1150 00-0 837215 00 

" 12/3112008 ACCUM OEPR - INFRASTRUCTIJRE O().·1·OQ.11829Q.0 227929400 
14 12/3112008 OalnJIMS on Disposni 01 CapltalAsBels- 9G4-0Q....4999 90-0 156910a 

" 1213112008 GelnJloss OIl Dlspo!UII 01 Capital Assets 9iJ..4-.00..<\999 00-0 2671200 

" 
12/3112.008 Purei1asod Eqcipment_ PubUe Sruety OO-5-0(}..55QO 9!).G 799453 92 

I. 121'3112.000 Purchll!lod Equipment w General Gov, go..5-91).85oo 9O-G 47023340 
I. 12/3112006 Purchased Equ!Pment- CUlture and Rae go..5-91).8501 00-0 17947010 
14 1213112.006 Purchased Equlpmentw Hlghwily3 OO-5-9()'8502 g()..G 416621527 
14 12131/2008 Purclw:ed Equlpment_ Econ Oev go..S.go..65Q3 9()'G 93923657 

" 
1213112008 OepreciaUon Exponse w General OQVll.mmenl 00$·90-ooo090-G 40066 DO 

I. 12131/2006 Depreclallon Expense· PubUc Safety go..5-90-9OO1 9O-G 60496500 

I. 12/3112008 Depredation Expon!!o ~ H1ghwByu. and S!reals 9O-5-9()..9002 90-G 248930600 

I. 1213112006 Depredation Expense. CUlture and Recreetlon 90-5-90-9003 9Q..G 351.55800 

To record currcnI. yoor capital 
assel ael1v1ty 

" 
1213112006 CASH - CHECKING 72-1·()()..i100 72·PS 150204 

15 1213112008 ASSET SEIZURE- STATE 72-4-0(}..42oo 72·PS 10 GaT 05 
15 12/3112008 SEIZURE PAYMENTS (STATE) 7H .. oo..S600 72-PS 316501 

To not seizure rcml!tnnces to 
Slate oglllnllt recorded lorfelture ruvenue 

10 1213112008 INVESTMENTS .. CDS 12·1·0Q.-1Z0072·PS 11097292 ,. 12/3112008 ASSET SEiZURg- FEDERAl. 124-00..4250 72. .. PS 115G9994 

I. 12/3112008 AS$ETSEIZURE-FEOERAL 72-4-0(}..425O 7Z .. PS 5468 00 

I. 12/3112008 ASSET SEIZURE _ FEDERAl 72-4-00-4250 n·ps 6Z500 

" 12{3112008 INTEREST INCOME 72-4--0(}..4500 72"PS 472102 

I. 12/3112008 INTEREST INCOME 124-00-4500 72 .. PS 62500 

16 12/3112008 EQUPIPMENT (FEDERAL) 72·5-0a.570072·P$ 546000 

To correct Fodoral Forfol\uro 
ravonuo Ilnd record Investment Income: on certJlicllles of depo5U 

I. 1213112008 CASH. CHECKING 74-HKH12074-911 56966156 ,. 12/311200B CASH .. CHECKING 74--1·(JO..1120 14-911 33199B22 

I. 1.213112.000 INTEREST INCOME 74+0Q..450014 .. tI11 176514 

I. 12/3112006 911 FUND REVENUE 74-4-00-141074-911 55190242 

7/2112.0DII 
3:30 PM Fag" 3 



City of Berwyn 
Year End: December 31, 2008 
Adjusting Journal Entries 
Data: 111/2008 To 12/3112008 

Number Oato AccO\.lnt No 

18 

" ,. 

20 
20 

21 
21 
21 
21 

24 
24 
24 

25 
25 
25 
25 

25 

29 
26 
26 
26 

'lJ 
27 
27 

712112009 
3:30 PM 

1213112008911 FUND EXPENDITURES 

To adjust 911 cash, revenue 
Inleresl and BKPemntUfQ 

12(3112008 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
1213112.006911 FUND EXPENO\nJRES 

To rnvoflle prior yenr Nlln E-911 
Fund 

121'3112008 DUE TO GENERAl FUND 
12/31/2008 911 FUND EXPENDITURES 

To rflVOttIn due 10 Gon Fund 
relmburood In January 200B 

1213112008 MISCELlANEOUS RECEIVABLES 
1213112008 MISCELLANEOUS RECEiVABLES 
1213112008911 FUNDRE\lENUE 
12/3112000 911 FUND REVENUE 

To ",cord current year E-911 

74-5-00-9700 14-911 

74.-2-00·.210074·011 
1+5-00.970074-011 

74-2-O()"205574-'I:I11 
74-5-00-9700 74-911 

71}.1-\11)..150674-911 
74-HlQ..1500 74-911 
74-4-(l[)"7410 74-911 
744-0().741074-911 

rcvenull reeelvablo and roverse prior YDar rocolvablo 

12/3112008 INTEREST ACCRUAL 74-1-OQ.1390 1+911 
1213112008 INTEREST INCOME 74-4-00-4500 74-911 

To reverso E·911 prlorycnT 
Inlen!.sl recall/shIll 

1213112000 LAND HELD FOR RESALE 56-1·OQ.1900 56-CT 
121311200e. CERMAKTl F 56-5-56-8100 sa.CT 

CAIE· To rnam:llnnd ncqt.drod and 
hold fOT resnlc In tho Ccmluk TlF 

12fJ112oo8 DUE TO GENERAL FUND 14-2-0G-2055 74-911 
'213112008 TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAl FUND 74-5-{lD-5700 74-lm 
12131f.2010 a11 FUND EXPENDITURES 74-5-0()"9700 74-911 

To record 4111 qWl110r 
relmbuT$emant for E-911 tolacommunlcotor ealBr\c.s 

12131/2008 ACCUM DEPRECIATION· VEHJCLES eG-1-00-1611 Co.,WAS 
12f31fZOOO ACCUM DEPRECIATION-lAND IMPROVEME 80-1·00-1621 no.WAS 
12/3112OOS ACCUM DEPREC1ATlON-1NFRASTRUCTURls0-1-DO-1B3180-WAS 
1213112008 ACCUM DEPREe -BUILDING eO-l"00.1642 eO-WAS 
1213112008 WATER So SEWER· DEPRECIATION So.5-0Q.S220 8o.WAS 

To record corron!. yoorwaler fIXed 
asset deproelnUcn 

12/3112008 MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES 
1213112008 D.UETOIFROM FUND 74 (911) 
12131no06 TRANSFER IN FROM 911 FUND74 
1213112006 REIMBURSEMENTS - POUCE 

CUM! Entry· To rodn:l9!fy 
an/DIY rolmbursement frum 911 fund 10 transrer 

1;uJ11lO081NFRASTRUCTlJRE 
1213112000 ACCUM OEPR - INFRASTRUCTURE 
12131/2000 GalnJk>ss on Obpo~101 of Cepltal Assots 

To I1ICOrd aJ1cy dispooal3 

11·'"00-150611.(; 
11~'·00-167411·G 

1104-O(}.493511-(3 
11-4-08-438111-13 

90-1·00-1780 aQ.G 
9Q-.1-OQ.178Z.0Q.G 
9Q.4.0Q-.40ll900-G 

Prepared by RevIewed by G.5.1 A-3 

'"" DAB 
6/11/2009 812312Q09 

Reference Annotntlon DebIt Cred!t Recurrence 

F14 
'14 
F 14 
F14 
F14 

-----------------33199822 

2000000 

2359167 

87148 S2 

7140722 

48149 

121500000 

46 B72 23 

394912700 

1025104 

46e7223 

7615200 
2: aDa 00 

20 000 00 

2359187 

71 407 22 
87148,82 

48,1\9 

, 215 000 00 

1025104 

36 B2119 

1585sno 
15034 00 

3904 OBOOO 
1405700 

1025104 

46 B72 23 

7895Boo 

Pngo 4 



CI f ty 0 Berwyn 
Year End: Doeemher31, 2008 
AdjUsting Journal Entries 
Date: 1/112008 To 12131/2008 

Number Dabt Name AccountND 

28 
28 

2B 

30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 
30 

30 
30 
30 
30 
30 

31 

31 

33 
33 

34 

34 
34 
34 

7121/2009 
3:3D PM 

1V311200B CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 
1Z1311200B CQNSTRUCT10N IN PROGRESS 
1213112008 Purchased Equipmenl_ Public Safety 

Toroco.rd911 sysiomCIP 

1213112006 Transfarlo coas 
12/3112006 COMMUNITY OUTREACH FUND SUBSIDY 
1213112008 COMMUNITY OUTREACH - CASH 

9O·1'{)0.17109D-G 
S0-1'()o"171D 90-G 
9o.5-90-550000.e 

1,·,5-32-90321'-G 
11·505G-5Q0511·G 
15-1.Q()'112515-0RF 

121J112008 COMMUNITY OUTREACH -CASH 1s..1·00-112515-0RF 
1213112009 Due From Ornwdown 15-1·00-13101S-0RF 
1213112003 OUTREACH· CoBG GRANT FOR SR ADVOCJ 15+00-4500 15-0RF 
12fJ1flOOa OUTREACH ~ GENERAL FUND SUBSIDY 15+00-4910 15-0RF 
12fJ11200a CASH GENERAl, CHECKING 11 
12f3112.00a CASH GENERALCHECKlNG 11 32~1.QO·1125 32·ep 
1213112008 AR· REIMBURSEMEffT FROM ORAWDOWN 32·1..()().131032·CP 
1213112008 Transfcrfrom Generol Fund 
1213112008 COBG GRANT REVENUE 

CAJE ~ 10 reclassify COSO rovenuo 

32.1-01·9001 3Z-CP 
32.-4-00-4BOO 32·CP 

to Oulronch for SenIor Advocata salaries and program COllis lind to trnnsfllf general 
fund sahara of IHllmlls charged to COeG and adjust General FUlld 
subsidy 10 Ou\n~aeh 

12131nooa AR. REIMBURSEMENT FROM DRAWDOWN 32·1·OQ.1310 32·ep 
121311200a COBG GRANT REVENUE 

CAJE· 10 (ecord )'lIlIr-end 
non-pnyroU related revemuo acau21 (or COBG 

12/3112008 ACCRUED· OTHER 
1213112008 Police Grnnt· Rapnymanl 

CAJE ·10 record CUITClnt Rllbftlty 

32-4-00-4500 3Z·ep 

11-2·(}{}.,211111-G 
11-5-08-,5600 11-13 

for unallowable co,1:!I &3oclnlcd wltn 2004-2005 seizUre fund cxpcndituro~ 

12/3112008 lAND IMPROVEMENTS SQ..1-Q0-1770 90-6 
121311Zooa ACCUM DEP· LAND IMPROVEMENTS 9().1..()().177290-G 
1213112008 PUrt:h1J511d Equlpmllnt", Highways 9O-5-00-S502 sO-G 
12J311200S Dcpreeltillon Expernlll' H!ghv..-ay~ and Streets 90-5-00..aODZ SQ.G 

Client enlIy· To record corro~ 
land Improvement addlllon amount 

Not Ineomo (Loss) (18,056,,(26.38) 

Prepared by Reviewed by G 51 A·4 

,"H DAB 
G/1l/2009 612312009 

Reference Annotation Debit Credit Recurrence 

103 612 00 
12.4BOOO 

2.635822 

4415251 

B 89194 

2835822 
2635622 

52. B44 45 

15651623 

234 000 00 

8SB 016 00 

111l6D 00 

116102.00 

2635622 

2635822 

5284445 

4415251 
B 691 94 

26351322 

155 516 23 

23400000 

17 S60 00 
89B 018 00 

220280,028.42 220,280021142 

Page 5 



ity of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, lIlinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 

www berwyn-il gOY 

The Honorable Mayor Robert Lovero 
& Members of Berwyn City Council 

6700 w. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Mayor and Aldermen; 

August 1 st, 2009 

As you may be aware, several years ago the number of appointed individuals to the Community 

Relations Commission was increased from seven members to eleven members. Since that time 
the Commission has struggled to reach a quorum at its' monthly meetings, thereby precluding it 
from legally conducting any business mandated by ordinance. Therefore, it is my 

recommendation that the Community Relations Ordinance amendment increasing the number of 
members to eleven be rescinded and the original number of seven members be reinstated. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Sincerely, 
. seph Keating 

Dil'eej:(jjr, Community Re ations Commission 



The ~y of Berwyn 

'\/ \ 
Robert J. Lovero 

Mayor 

'-.J A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 7882567 

www berwyn·'il gov 

The Honorable Mayor Robert Lovero 
& Members of Berwyn City Council 

6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Mayor and Aldermen; 

August 1 st, 2009 

Please allow this communication to serve as a recommendation for the appointment of Susan 
Cffeenberg to fill one of the vacancies which exist on the Community Relations Commission. A 

copy of her resume is attached. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Joseph Keating ~ 

. / ... D~mm~'ty M Co="",, 



Objective 

Experience 

Education 

Employment 

Susan Greenberg 
2617 Oak Park Ave, Berwyn, 60402, ; 

I am interested in being appointed to a seat on the Community 
Relations Commission· Board effective August 2009 

Friends of the Berwyn Public Library (Board President) 
April 2006 to present 
.' Increased membership in the Fri.ends O[ the Berwyn Library 
• 'l>1creased funds raised peryear'for Library use 
• Moved twice annual used book sales from library staffed to ,Friends 
of the Library staffed 

Euclid Avenue United Methodist Church (Treasurer) 
January 2006 to December 2008, Oak Park, IL 
• Recorded donations and dispersed payments per budget line items 
• Reconciled ban k statements and prepared and presented f!lonthly 
financial reports ' 

, 

Euclid Avenue United Methodist Women (Vice President) 
January 2005 to December 2008, Oak Park, IL 
• Directed planning and execution of 8 programs a year 
• Member of UMW ~l'lculivl'l Cpmmitte,l'l 

Euclid Avenue United Methodist Women (President) 
1994 through 1997, 2003, 2004 
• Encourage and empower women to raise funds for projects helping 
women and children locally and globally 
• Leading monthly meetings to plan 'and discuss projects 
• Plan and eXl'lcute fund faiJ>l'lfJ> 

Purdue University, Lafayette, IN 
1Jl13.3-1Jl1313 
• BS degree in Medical Technology 
• 1 year intemship at Wesley Memorial Hospital, Chica.go, IL, in 1967 

Northwestern Memorial Hospital (Medical Technologist) 
July 1974 to present, Chica.go, IL 

Interests As a member of several minorities, I will bring an 
unrepresented perspective to the Community Relations Commission, I have not 
experienced personally directed discrimination but I know it exists, I will be fair 
in considering complaints, because I can empathize and not over react. 

References References are available on request 



K. Consent Agenda 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www berv.'yn-il gov 

August4,2009 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll August 5,2009 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

:"IONA N, CHAPlvlAN 
First Ward Alderman 

IlM: (70S) 484 Nona (6662) 
B-Mail: IstWard@Berwyn,IL Gov 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at the 
August 11,2009 meeting. 

Payroll: August 5, 2009 in the amount of $852,538.72 .. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N, Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

wwwberwyn-i1 gOY 

August 7,2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: PayablesAugust 7,2009 meeting 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Ward Alderman 

ILM: (708) 484 Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: lstWard@Bef\\)u-IL Gov 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and are ready for approval at the 
July 28, 2009 meeting. 

Total Payables: August 7, 2009 in the amount of $3,099,136.58. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



Number Date Status Void Reason 

01 ~ General Cash 

~ 

3129 08105/2009 Open 

3130 08/1212009 Open 

3131 08/12/2009 Open 

3132 08/12/2009 Open 

3133 08/12/2009 Open 

3134 08/1212009 Open 

3135 08/12/2009 Open 

3136 08/12/2009 Open 

3137 08/12/2009 Open 

3138 08/12/2009 Open 

3139 0811212009 Open 

3140 08/12/2009 Open 

3141 08/12/2009 Open 

3142 08/12/2009 Open 

3143 08/1212009 Open 

3144 08/12/2009 Open 

3145 08/12/2009 Open 

3146 08/1212009 Open 

3147 08/1212009 Open 

3148 08/12/2009 Open 

user: lovlnelli, Luna 

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Reconciledl Source Payee Name 
Voided Date 

Accounts Payable JYNETTE AYALA 

Accounts Payable A.W.E.S.O.M.E. PEST SERVICE 

Accounts Payable AM ALL COUNTY BOARD UP & 
GLASS 

Accounts Payable ACM ELEVATOR 

Accounts Payable AIR ONE EQUIPTMENT.INC. 

Accounts Payable ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY 

Accounts Payable ALFREDO RAMIREZ & URIEL 
CAMPOS 

Accounts Payable AMAZON.COM 

Accounts Payable AMERICAN MESSAGING 

Accounts Payable ANDERSON BROS FORD 

Accounts Payable Ann V. Chabot 

Accounts Payable AntonIO Montiel 

Accounts Payable Arcen Pal 

Accounts Payable AT&T 

Accounts Payable AT&T 

Accounts Payable B&B WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS 

Accounts Payable B. DAVIDS LANDSCAPING 

Accounts Payable BAKER & TAYLOR.INC. 

Accounts Payable BANC OF AMERICA PUB CAPTL 
CORP 

Accounts Payable BBC AUDIOBOOKS AMERICA 

Pages: 1 of 9 

Transaction 
Amount 

$803.21 

$885.00 

$215.00 

$1.366.48 

$1.285.64 

$21.637.17 

$1.475.00 

$72.88 

$232.00 

$1.149.24 

$83.37 

$36.55 

$83.32 

$21.356.92 

$1.335.04 

$14.50 

$9.775.00 

$2.488.18 

$5.512.48 

$532.93 

Reconciled 
Aml?unt 

Difference 

Friday. August 07. 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

I 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3149 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Beata Benavlces $19.37 

3150 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN ACE HARDWARE $15.99 

3151 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP $500.00 

3152 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP $395,457.20 

3153 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BERWYN WESTERN PLBG. & $593.75 
HEATING 

3154 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BETH DURKIN $148.14 

3155 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BLUE CROSSIBLUE SHIELD OF $488,463.61 
ILLINOIS 

3156 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BOB'S LAWN CARE $6.650.00 

3157 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable BUSY-BEE BOARD-UP & $1.174.75 
EMERGENCY SERVICE ,INC. 

3158 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CASE LOTS INC $613.30 

3159 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable COW GOVERNMENT.INC. $8.018.77 

3160 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Charles D. Lazzara $19.95 

3161 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHICAGO OFFICE TECHNOLOGY $16.06 
GROUP 

3162 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CHRISTOPHER DEWEY. $1,475.00 

3163 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CINTAS#769 51.230.96 

3164 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CITADEL $135.00 

3165 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable CNA $36.785.09 

3166 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable COM ED $24,781.74 

3167 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable COMCAST CABLE $121.90 

3168 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable COMPLETE TEMPERATURE $2,105.00 
SYSTEMS,INC. 

3169 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable CONSUMER REPORTS $29.96 

3170 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable DAVID L. & TOYCE l. PRICE $1,475.00 

user. lovlnelli, Luna Pages: 2 of 9 Friday. August 07, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3171 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable DELL MARKETING L.P $875.97 

3172 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable DIAMOND GRAPHICS, INC. $502.00 

3173 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable DIANE JEPSEN $12.28 

3174 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable DON MORRIS ARCHITECTS,P.C. $8,185.00 

3175 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable DOOR SYSTEMS,INC. $621.60 

3176 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE,INC. $92.00 

3177 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable EVA KESSEL $35.00 

3178 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable FEDERAL EXPRESS $36.75 
CORPORATION 

3179 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Fernando Dominguez $63.61 

3180 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable FIRE SAFETY CONSULTANTS,INC. $3,946.96 

3181 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable FLASH ELECTRIC CO. $3,590.00 

3182 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable GABRIEL SALES $67.96 

3183 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Gema Hernandez $200.00 

3184 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable GOLDSTINE,SKRODZKI,RUSSIAN.N $46,790.88 
EMEC & HOFF.L TO. 

3185 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Grace Nelson, $39.06 

3186 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable GREAT WEST ELECTRIC SUPPLY $17.10 
CO 

3187 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable Guitar Player $22.99 

3188 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable HALOGEN SUPPLY CO INC $3,123.48 

3189 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable Hamet Rahn $22.12 

3190 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,L TO $5,064.58 

3191 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable HOLIDAY CAMERA INC. $867.71 

3192 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES $232.92 

3193 08112/2009 Open Accounts Payable HORIZON SCREENING $353.00 

user: lovinelli, Luna Pages: 3 of 9 Fnday, August 07. 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3194 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable ILLINOIS PAPER & COPIER CO. $11.93 

3195 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES $1,545.04 

3196 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable JACK SHAY $2,950.00 

3197 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable JACK'S RENTAL INC $697.94 

3198 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable JAMES BATIISTA $1,475.00 

3199 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Jesse Caballero $16.86 

3200 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable JIM FRANK $114.36 

3201 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable John Balvich $28.46 

3202 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable JOHN TARULLO $4,320.00 

3203 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable JUST TIRES $498.56 

3204 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable K's Construction $3,415.50 

3205 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable KB LAWN AND MULCH $855.00 

3206 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable KUSTOM SIGNALS,INC. $526.00 

3207 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable LACONIYSS $25.00 

3208 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Linton Company $260.00 

3209 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable LOUIe Oenggl $1,475.00 

3210 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Mark I. Manella $450.00 

3211 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MARLIN LEASING $704.21 

3212 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MAS MODERN MARKETING $574.07 

3213 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MC. DRYWALL FINISHERS,INC. $420.00 

3214 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MENARDS $98.76 

3215 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MENARDS $341.58 

3216 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MES-ILLINOIS $79.67 

user. lovlne!li, Luna Pages: 40f9 FndaY,Augusl07,2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3217 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Metro Clerking,lnc. $80.00 

3218 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable METRO COLLISION SERVICE $44.86 

3219 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MICRO MARKETING.LLC $33.98 

3220 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MIDCO INC. $1,127.52 

3221 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MIKE LYONS $210.93 

3222 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MILTON F PERSIN $89.80 

3223 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable MODERN HTG. & COOLING, INC. $135.00 

3224 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Monica Zdenek $97.06 

3225 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable MRA $16,545.75 

3226 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Nacika Costas $36.43 

3227 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable NAEIR $530.20 

3228 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF $128.38 
TOWN WATCH 

3229 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable NATIONAL SEED $148.00 

3230 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Navarro's Concrete $5,500.00 

3231 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable NEAL & LEROY,LL.C. $9,109.00 

3232 0811212009 Open Accounts Payable NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS $990.30 

3233 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable NICK COCONATO $106.09 

3234 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable NICORGAS $857.40 

3235 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable North East Multi·Regional $75.00 
Tralning,lnc. 

3236 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable NUWIRELESS $70.00 

3237 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable NUWIRELESS $40.00 

3238 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable OFFICE EQUIPMENT SALES $145.58 

3239 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable OLDIES.COM $232.85 

user: lovinelli, Luna Pages: 5 of 9 Friday,August07,2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 81812008 • To Payment Date: 811212009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3240 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable OLE FASHION FOOD SERVICES $124.85 

3241 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable OSCAR SANTAGO $1,290.00 

3242 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable PACE VAN POOL $300.00 

3243 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable PARAMEDIC SERVICES OF ILL $108,904.00 

3244 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Patrick N,Murray $1,925.00 

3245 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable PETAR DUMANOVIC,LLC $2,948.81 

3246 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable PHELAN DODGE $233.16 

3247 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Portino Pedraza $90.43 

3248 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Power Construction CompanY,lIe $1,326,730.00 

3249 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Proactive Data Systems,lnc. $1,996.00 

3250 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable QUARRY MATERIALS,INC. $775.93 

3251 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable RANDOM HOUSE,INC. $434.40 

3252 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable RECORDED BOOKS,LLC $6.95 

3253 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable RESEARCHTECHNOLOGYINTL $164.95 

3254 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable RESTORE BOARD·UP $3,580.00 

3255 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable RESURRECTION HEALTH CARE $37.50 

3256 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Richard Gently $50.00 

3257 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable RICOH AMERICAS CORPORATION $145.00 

3258 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable RIZZA FORD $849.71 

3259 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable ROBERT POKLACKI $22.24 

3260 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable ROSCOE COMPANY $387.61 

3261 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Roy Leoni $66.36 

3262 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Russe!! Kovas $25.19 

user. lovmelli, Luna Pages: 6 of 9 Frida~August07, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008 - To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3263 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SABER-TOOTH COMPUTING $630.00 

3264 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $104.60 

3265 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SAM'S CLUB $508.80 

3266 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Schmitz & Liss,lnc. $12,465.00 

3267 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SHANE'S OFFICE SUPPLY CO. $37.92 

3268 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Shelfwiz S86.50 

3269 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SIR SPEEDY $357.39 

3270 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO $614.22 

3271 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable STANLEY REBACZ TRUCKING,INC. $32,615.00 

3272 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Steve Alexa $259.94 

3273 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN DOOR CHECK & LOCK $2,296.61 
SERVICE 

3274 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable SUBURBAN LIFE PUBLICATIONS $300.00 

3275 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable T-MOBILE $338.59 

3276 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable T.A.G.'S TUCKPOINTING, $900.00 
GERARDO GARCIA 

3277 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable TAMMY CLAUSEN $66.55 

3278 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable TANTOR MEDIA $155.93 

3279 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE $273.24 

3280 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Terracon Consultants. Inc. $22,752.90 

3281 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL $25.00 
CONSERVANCY 

3282 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THEAVCAFE $21.19 

3283 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE GALE GROUP $837.00 

3284 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE GREEK STAR $50.00 

3285 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THE SIGN EDGE $64.00 

user: !ovlnelli, Luna Pages: 7 of 9 Friday, August 07, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 61612008 - To Payment Date: 811212009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciled! Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

3286 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable THIRD MILLENNIUM $12,805.40 
ASSOCICATES,INC. 

3287 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable Thomas Stillo $810.33 

3288 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable THOMPSON ELEVATOR $100,00 
INSPECTION SERVICE INC. 

3289 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable TIGER DIRECT $3,256.25 

3290 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable T any Petrauskas $425.00 

3291 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE $931.61 

3292 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable U.S. Cellular $337.24 

3293 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable UNIQUE MANAGEMENT $796.55 
SERVICES,INC. 

3294 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable UNITED PARCEL SERVICE $48.52 

3295 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable UPSTART INC $145.48 

3296 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable US GAS $196.40 

3297 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable VICTOR JURISEVIC $205.00 

3298 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable VOLTEXX,INC. $1,026.78 

3299 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable Warehouse Direct $1,184.04 

3300 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable WARREN OIL COMPANY $25,381.34 

3301 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable WASTE MANMAGEMENT ILLINOIS- $332,354.50 
METRO 

3302 08/1212009 Open Accounts Payable WATER ONE $97.75 

3303 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable WEST CENTRAL MUNICIPAL $19,535.25 
CONFERE 

3304 08/12/2009 Open Accounts Payable WESTERN REMAC INC. $500.18 

Type Check Totals: 176 Transactions $3,099,136,58 

01 M General Cash Totals 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

user: lovinelli, Luna Pages: 8 of 9 Friday, August 07, 2009 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/8/2008· To Payment Date: 8/12/2009 

Number Date Status Void Reason Reconciledl Source Payee Name Transaction Reconciled Difference 
Voided Date Amount Amount 

Open 176 $3,099,136.58 

Tolal 176 $3,099,136.58 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled AmoL!pt 

Open 176 $3,099,136.58 

Total 176 $3,099,136.58 $0.00 

Grand Totals: 

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 176 $3,099,136.58 

Total 176 $3,099,136.58 $0.00 

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount 

Open 176 $3,099,136.58 

Total 176 $3,099,136.58 $0.00 

user: iovlneili, LUna Pages: 9 of 9 Friday, August 07, 2009 



Robert J. Lovero 
~ Mayor 

I') 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Charles D. Lazzara 
Building Director 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788"2660 Fax: (708) 788-1427 
www,berwyn~il_gov 

August 7, 2009 

Honorable Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor of the City of Berwyn 
Members of City Council 

Re: Building and Local Improvement Permits 

Gentlemen: 

Attached hereto is the financial report of Building and Local Improvement Permits issued 
by the City of Berwyn for the month of July, 2009, along with a copy of Permit Statistics 
for this same period. 

CDL:cr 
Encs. 



Permits Issued By The Building Department Friday, August 07, 2009 

Betweell: 71112009 Alld 713112009 

Buildillg Per.mUs-Issued: 12 
Cost of 1mprovemellts: $99,799.00 

... ' .. 

Dumpster Permits Issued: 5 
Cost of Improvemellts: $0.00 

Electrical Permits Issued: 30 
Cost of Improvemellts: $22,300.00 

Permits Issued: 13 
Cost of Improvemellts: $10,626.00 

_ .. '. ..... .. ' .. _.-

Garage Permits Issued: 3 
Cost of Improvemellts: $28,500.00 

... _.-. .._-- _. - - ... -._- "'-'-'" _.- -_._ .... _. _.- .. -- -.. -----.--... -- ... --.. '- -._- -_ .. _-_._-_ .... 
Permits Issued: 16 

Cost of Improvements: $47,942.00 I 

I . __ .. _ ........... - "j 

Local Improvement Permits Issued: 259 
Cost of Improvemellts: $1,038,916.00 I 

J 

Plumbing Permits Issued: 20 
Cost of Improvemellts: $4.5,476.00 

" ... 

Roofing Permits Issued: 61 
Cost of Improvements: $343,353.05 

Permits Issued: 7 
Cost of Improvemellts: $70,125.00 

.. , .~.- ~ .0-. .- "'-~""'--'-'---' .".~~.--+.~ . '-"---.. --.,,--~-. 

Total Permits: 426 Total Improvemellts: $1,707,037.05 

Fees Collected 
Backfill Inspection t.·-----::c$3=0"".00::-7

1 

Building Permit $1,125.00 1 

Local Improvement Permit $13,315 .. 00 1 

Electrical Fees ·~-----""'$6-7--0-.0-0-11 

Electrical Inspection I $3,670.00 I 

( Bllilding: Permit Fees Report) Page 1 oJ2 



Permits Issued By The Building Department 

Betweell: 71112009 Alld 713112009 

Footing Inspection t $12500 I 
r---~ __ ~~~~ __ ----'"-----~~~ 

Framing Inspection i $1,49000 I 
Inspection t $2,92000 i 

Fence Fees i $325,00 I 
Foundation Inspection ! $12500 I 

Plumbing Fees i $780,00 I 
---~----~~~~~ Plumbing Inspection : $2,690,00 i 

Plumbing Inspection (Underground) I 
Post Hole Inspection I 

HVAC Permit : 
I-----:-H::-V'"'A-::C:-:I-ns-p-e-c:-:-tio-n-' .. ---~!· --

$360,00 I 
$785,00 I 

$1,125,00 i 
$2,150,00 i 

Service Charge I' $1,055 00 ! 
-\----==-=-=:-\' Insulation/Fire Stopping Inspection I $315,00 I 

New Water Meter i $500,00 I 
Tap Fee i $1,000,00 i 

Demolition Fees I $150,00 I 
~ _____ ~_D~um~ps .. t7e~r ________ ~ ______ $1~,~05~0~,0~0-\1 

Parkway Use $50,00 I 
Parkway Inspection I $30,,00 I 
Pre-Pour Inspection ; $1,800,00 I 

Slab Inspection i $125,00 I 
Fine - Working Without Permit I $2,200,00 I 

r---~~'~ __ ~-------i--· 
Roof Covering Fees i $3,255,00 I 

I-----::G:-a-ra-g-e-::p:-e.:..rm-·::-It ----+1 --~ $150,00 I 
Elevator ! $104,00 i "_. __ ,_ . _____ ."_____ _.'," ___ , ..... _.J _________________ .----i 

ITotal Fees Collected. . . " I $44,419,00 : 
-,.'-"----_. '--'--'._--'---'---"'" ". ""'""', ". _ .. ,------_.,---_ .. _---_.,._! 

Frid~y, Allgllst 07, 2009 

( Buildi1lg:' Permit Fees Report) Page 2 of 2 



Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, August 07, 2009 

Between: 71112009 And 713112009 Cost Of Cost Of 
Name alld Address Issued Permit No. Improvemellts Permit 
Olivia Bustamante 3612 S. Euclid Avenue REPLACE FURNACE AND INSTALL NEW AIR 7/6/Z009 Bldg-B 7294-0 $5,Z49.00 $Z05.00 

CONDITIONER. 

Azure Investments, LLC 1404 S. Oak Park Avenue ELECTRIC: BX TO CONDUIT - RADIATORS TO FORCED 7/13/2009 Bldg-B 7295-0 $24,500.00 $2,145.00 
AIR & NC WITH DUCTWORK - REPLACE PLUMBING 
FIXTURES - REPLACE PLUMBING WITH COPPER PIPING -
INSTALL 1" WATER METER & SERVICE TO UPGRADE TO 
CODE. 

Erick F. Padilla & Uliana RSlces 6544 W. Fairfield Avenue BASEMENT BATHROOM WAS BUILT BY PREV. OWNER 7/16/2009 Bldg-B 7296-0 $0.00 $90.00 
WITHOUT PERMIT - NEW OWNER NEEDS ELEC PLMB & 
FINAL BLDG INSPECTIONS TO SEE IF DONE TO CODE & 
BE KEPT. 

XEZlnc. 1327 S. Elmwood Avenue DEMOLISH FIRE DAMAGED RESIDENCE 7/16/Z009 Bldg·B 7297-0 $6,500.00 $130.00 

Glivena Guevara 2634 S. Euclid Avenue INST. NEW BATHROOM IN BSMTTOILET, SINK, 7/17/2009 Bldg-B 7298-0 $Z2,450.00 $475.00 
SHOWER. FINISH BSMT EXT. WALLS, CEILING - INSUL & 
DRYWALL 

Dorgan / Cooper 1220 S. Wesley Avenue DEMOLISH GARAGE & ATTACHED SHED 7/21/2009 Gar-B 7299-0 $3,50Q.00 $55.00 

Guillermo & Me/va Palomo 7013 W. 26th Place ERECT NEW 22 X 22 DET GARAGE WITH 6 FT ROOF 7/Z3/2009 Gar-B 7300-0 $11,000.00 $195.00 
EXTENSION - PATIO 

Amador Olavama & Olga R. Niev 1823 S. Scoville Avenue ADD A BATHROOM IN THE BASEMENT. - TOILET, SINK, 7123/2009 Bldg-B 7301-0 $600.00 $240.00 
SHOWER- WALLS WILL BE DURAROCK. TLES AND ADD 
VENT TO EXISTING BLOCK WINDOW. 

Pedro & Mana Lopez 1516 S. Grove Avenue BASEMENT REMODEL AND ADDING TOILET AND SINK 7/Z3/2009 Bldg-B 730Z-O $600.00 $280.00 

E. Rickeffs 2813 S. Wisconsm Avenue KITCHEN & BATH REMODEL -INST FURNACE & NC & 7/24/2009 Bldg-B 7303-0 $37,500.00 $695.00 
REPL DUCTWORK - REPL WATER HEATER 

Pablo Gonzalez 3545 S. Cuyler Avenue DEMO AND REBUILD GARAGE 22' X 20' X 12'6". ROOFED 7/Z8/2009 Gar-B 7304-0 $14,000.00 $250.00 
PATIO - POST OF ROOF HANGOVER MUST BE 4Z" DEEP. 

Armando Sotelo Jr. 2536 S. Ridgeland Avenue ADD BATHROOM IN BASEMENT TO CODE. 7/28/2009 Bldg-B 7305-0 $2,400.00 $100.00 

Paul & Barbara Kane 2703 S. Euclid Avenue REISSUE OF EXPIRED PERMIT FOR THE PURPOSE OF 7/27/2009 Bldg-R 5913-1 $0.00 $90.00 
FINAL ELECTRICAL, FINAL PLUMBING AND FINAL 
BUILDING INSPECTION. 

JVS Leasing 7111 W. Roosevelt Road PLUMBING REINSPECTION 7/6/2009 Bldg-R 7220-2 $0.00 
I 

$50.00 

Khawa/a E. Abdelhamed & Khale 1303 S. Clinton Avenue ELECTRICAL REINSPECTION 71712009 Bldg-R 7281-2 $0.00 $50.00 

( Bllilding: Permit Report ) Page 1 of2 



Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Betweell: 71112009 Alld 713112009 

Name alld Address 

15 Building Permits ISSlied Durillg Period 

( Buildillg: Permit Report) 

Friday, August 07, 2009 

Cost Of 

Issued Permit No. Improvemellts 

Totals • .... $128.299.00 

Cost Of 

Permit 

$5.050.00 

Page2of2 



Permits Issued Friday, August 7,2009 10:21 AM 

For Period Beginning 7/1/2009 And Ending 713112009 

iii Sign 

II Roof 

OPium 

!llmpr 

I!!lHVAC 

I1lIGar 

Jul 

'" Fence 

DElee 

~Dump 

l1li Bldg 

o 25 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 225 250 275 

Permit Detail 

2009 July Bldg 12 
2009 July Dump 5 
2009 July Elec 30 
2009 July Fence 13 
2009 July Gar 3 
2009 .July HVAC 16 
2009 July Impr 259 
2009 July Plum 20 
2009 ,July Roof 61 
2009 _July Sign 7 

426 

Total Permits Issued 426 



Permits Issued Friday, August 7,2009 10:23 AM 

For Period Beginning 7/1/2008 And Ending 7/31/2009 

Jul 
Ii!l-Sign 

Jun o Roof 

May IiilPOD 

Apr III Plum 

Mar Dlmpr 

Feb 
IIHVAC 

Jan 
Iill1IGar 

Dec 
IiliIFence 

Nov 

IllIElec 

Oct 

DDump 
Sep 

I1iIBldg 

III <> 

o 25 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 225 250 275 300 

Permit Detail 

2009 July Bldg 12 2009 May 
2009 July Dump 5 2009 May Bldg 12 
2009 July Elec 30 2009 May Dump 5 
2009 July Fence 13 2009 May Elec 17 
2009 July Gar 3 2009 May Fence 24 
2009 July HVAC 16 2009 May Gar 2 
2009 July Impr 259 2009 May HVAC 12 
2009 July Plum 20 2009 May Impr 259 
2009 July Roof 61 2009 May Plum 21 
2009 July Sign 7 2009 May POD 1 

426 2009 May Roof 55 

2009 June Bldg 13 2009 Mar Sign 

2009 June Dump 9 410 

2009 June Elec 31 2009 April Bldg 14 
2009 June Fence 20 2009 April Dump 8 
2009 June Gar 7 2009 April Elec 20 
2009 June HVAC 9 2009 April Fence 13 
2009 June Impr 247 2009 Aprll Gar 7 
2009 June Plum 26 2009 April HVAC 11 
2009 June POD 3 2009 April Impr 202 
2009 June Roof 78 2009 April Plum 31 
2009 June ~i.gn, 6 2009 April POD 1 

449 2009 Aprn Roof 50 
2009 April Sign 4 

361 



Permit Detail 

2009 March Bldg 17 2008 September 
2009 March Dump 9 2008 September Bld9 13 
2009 March Elee 24 2008 September Dump 12 
2009 March Fence 10 2008 September Elee 52 
2009 March Gar 7 2008 September Fence 16 
2009 March HVAC 13 2008 September Gar 11 

'2009 March Impr= 189 2008 September HVAC 23 
2009 March Plum 43 200B September Impr 277 
2009 March POD 1 2008 September Plum 55 
2009 March Roof 41 2008 September POD 2 
2009 March Sig~ 6 2008 September Roof 89 

360 2008 September Sign 4 

2009 February Bldg 10 555 
2009 February Dump 6 2008 August 1 
2009 February Elee 21 2008 August Bldg 17 
2009 February Fence 1 2008 August Dump 12 
2009 February Gar 1 2008 August Elee 41 
2009 February HVAC 4 2008 August Fence 16 
2009 February Impr 97 2008 August Gar 10 
2009 February Plum 29 2008 August HVAC 18 
2009 February POD 3 2008 August Impr 275 
2009 February Roof 13 2008 August Plum 27 
2009 F.ebru~ry ~ign 6 2006 August POD 4 

191 2006 August Roof 74 

2009 January Bldg 13 2008 August Sign 4 
2009 ,January Dump 4 499 
2009 .January Elee 17 2006 July Bldg 9 
2009 January Fence 2 2008 July Dump 14 
2009 January Gar 2006 .July Elee 38 
2009 ,January HVAC 13 2008 July Fence 30 
2009 January lmpr 65 2008 July Gar 7 
2009 January Plum 18 2006 July HVAC 20 
2009 January Roof 4 2006 .July lmpr 273 
2009 January Sign 4 2006 July Plum 33 

141 2006 July POD 4 

2006 December Bldg 9 2006 July Roof 79 

2006 December Dump 1 2006 July Sl~n 5 

2008 December Elee 25 512 

2006 December Fence 3 
2008 December Gar 4 
2006 December HVAC 16 
2006 December Impr 96 
2006 December Plum 32 
2006 December Roof 9 
2006 December SIgn 6 

201 

2008 November Bldg 11 
2008 November Dump 5 
2006 November Elec 24 
2006 November Fence 10 
2008 November Gar 6 
2006 November HVAC 16 
2008 November lmpr 141 
2006 November Plum 18 
2008 November POD 1 
2008 November Roof 62 
2006 November Sign 7 

301 

2006 October Bldg 10 
2006 October Dump 5 
2008 October Elee 26 
2006 October Fence 13 
2008 October Gar 15 
2006 October HVAC 19 
2006 October Impr 266 
2006 October Plum 42 
2006 October POD 2 
2006 October Roof 111 
2006 October Sign 5 

514 



Permit Detail 

Total Permits Issued 4920 



· ayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Collection and 
Licensing 

6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 749·8910 
www,berwyn-il.gov 

August 7, 2009 

Honorable Mayor Robert 1 Lovero 
And Members ofthe City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

Attached please find a list of business licenses which have been issued, by the Collector's Office, for 
the month of July, 2009. Included are storefronts, office phone use only businesses as well as out of 
town contractors. I am also providing a list of businesses that have applied for a license with a current 
status of Application ReviewlPending along with businesses waiting for inspections with a status of 
Inspections Pending. 

<~ 
Ricardo Macedo 
Collections and Licensing 
RMlsb 



BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN JULY, 2009 (STOREFRONTS) 

NAME ADDRESS 

Discount Furniture Center 6727 W. Cermak Road 

Will Be Done Document Ser 6231 W. 26th Street 

Harlem Expresso 

Route 66 Car Wash 
(new owner) 

7135 W. Windsor Avenue 

6840 W. Ogden Avenue 

Underground Revolution 6925 W. Ogden Avenue 

New Shanghai Chop Suey 2141 S. Ridgeland Avenue 
(new owner) 

United Video 2143 S. Ridgeland Avenue 
(new owner) 

Roberto's Place 3244 S. Oak Park Avenue 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

John JamroziklDaniel LOiacono 

Juana Rivera-Vidal 

Alex Veselyrrony Plzak 

Mohammad Hamid 

Mark SerpIco 

Simon Wong 

Davy Seng 

Roberto Garcia 

COMMENTS 

Furniture Store (708) 484-5865 

Document Preparation (708) 655-9977 

Coffee Shop (708) 362-1781 

Car Wash (708) 795-7837 

Skate Board Sales (708) 484-6512 

Restaurant (708) 484-0247 

Video Sales (708) 484-2007 

(708) 484-1178 



BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED FOR JULY, 2009 
OUT OF TOWN CONTRACTORS 

NAME 

Celtic Contractors, 
John's Htg & Air Condo 
Lester Construction, Inc. 
Wal-Mor General & Mech 
A & E Roofing & Siding 
Kavanagh QualitY Tiling 
Nilco, Inc. 

ADDRESS 

4923 W. 154th, Oak Forest 
3825 31 st, Chicago 
5401 S. Mobile, Chicago 
10901 Eggleston, Chicago 
20 S. Locust, Aurora 
1413 Sherman, Romeoville 
19W900 Square Barn, Huntley 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Celtic Contractors, Inc. 
John's Htg & Air Cond, Inc. 
Lester Construction, Inc. 
Wal-Mor General & Mech., Inc. 
A & E Roofing & Siding, Inc. 
Kavanagh Quality Tiling, Inc. 
Nilco, Inc. 

Page 1 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Carpentry) 
Contractor (HVAC) 
Contractor (Masonry) 
Contractor (Plumbing) 
Contractor (Roofing) 
Contractor (Tile/Ceramlc/Marble/Mosalc 
Contractor (Tree Serv/Landscapmg) 



Business Directory By Category For: Friday, Allgllst 07, 2009 

Application Review 
Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

1st Stop Realty (708) 749-0101 7591 
2707 S Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/4/2009 

BerlV)'1I Home Video (708) 788-7000 11557 
6716 W Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 6111/2009 

BerlV)'1I TrallSmissiolls & Allto/Trllck Rep. (708) 11393 
6226 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 3/24/2009 

Family Nlltritioll Cellter (708) 11434 
2138 S. Highland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 4/21/2009 

FIl1I1~Y BOllllcers (708) 336-1043 11534 
6719 W Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 5/27/2009 

Haciellda Davila (708) 11580 
6737-39 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/25/2009 

La Cabll)'a Colombiall ClIisille (708) 11543 
6512 1/2 Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 
W. 

Laglliappe, LLC (312) 651-2037 11541 
2905 S Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 

R & R Liqllors (708) 11665 
6639W Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 7/3012009 

Y Alld A Cleallers Ullit C (708) 11283 
2209 S. Highland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 1/22/2009 

Total Businesses ........ 10 

( Business Direclory By C1!egory) 
Page # ........ . 1 



Business Directory By Category For: Friday, AlIgllst 07,2009 

Application Pending 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

29.99 SllOe Wareltollse (708) 11463 
6236 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 4/23/2009 

Bralldos of BerwYII (708) 10121 
6838 W. Windosr Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 1116/2008 

Bride's Palace, I/lc. (708) 11486 
6512 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 5/6/2009 

Commullication Sales (708) 11544 
6405 W. 34th Street Berwyn IL 60402 6/3/2009 

More/elise, Inc. (708) 11460 
6929W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 4/21/2009 

Total Businesses ........ 5 

( Business Directory By Category) 
Page # ........ . 1 



Business Directory By Category For: Frida)" August 07, 2009 

Inspections Pending 
Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

Alllla's Bakery (708) 11369 

6737 W 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 3112/2009 

COllceptioll's (708) 11426 

6215 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 4/6/2009 

Goldell Homes Real Estate, illc. (708) 10319 

6705 W. 26th Street Berwyn 11 60402 6/23/2008 

Horrorbles, illc. (708) 484-7370 11577 
6729 W Roosevelt Road Berwyn IL 60402 6/23/2009 

Maratholl Gas Food Mart AKA Shreeji Benv)'Il, illc (708) 11073 
1600 S Oak Park Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 10/1512008 

Mariscos Zi/llltallejo (708) 795-9400 11202 
6713 W. 26th Street Berwyn IL 60402 316/2009 

Me.Co~s Caterillg (708) 11546 
62l5W. 26th Street Berwyn 11 60402 6/4/2009 

Mi Coso Restaurallt, illc. (708) 484-9255 11453 
6832 W Ogden A venue Berwyn IL 60402 613/2009 

Nu Wireless (708) 749-2700 11576 
6927 W. Ogden A venue Berwyn IL 60402 6/23/2009 

Spill City Laulldromat (708) 637-4417 11120 
7122 W. 16th Street Berwyn IL 60402 1/6/2009 

USA illsurallce Brokers (708) 788-8822 9521 
6807 W Roosevelt Road Berwyn 11 60402 1119/2007 

VUllgard Distributioll (708) 484-2090 11529 
2905 S Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn 11 60402 6/512009 

Total Businesses ........ 12 

( Business Directory By Category ) 
Page # ........• 1 



I ,bert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Jeffrey G. Boyajian 
Second Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress-with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 7882660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

www benvyu"il gov 

July 29, 2009 

Honorable Mayor Robert l Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No, 613 
Michael O'Connell- 3206 S, Lombard Ave .. 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I concur with the fIndings of the investigating offIcer to approve the above handicap sign 
request I ask this matter be approved by consent. 

Respectfully, 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
2nd Ward Alderman 



We Serve and ProJect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN 
VelbU:lE BEP-ARTMENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, lIIinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

July 20, 2009 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Michael O'Connell # 613 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

3206 S. Lombard Ave. 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALD ERMA N _--->J'-"e'-"f'-"'f"'-r""e YL--<B""o'-Ly~a-,-j ""i a,,"n,,-_~_ 



qfjerwyn 
(Pollee (})epa:rtm.ent 

6401 West31 1l Street 
Bernyn, Illinois 60402-1lJ33_ 

Phone (708) 795·5600 
(Fox) 795·5627 Emergency 9-1·1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
and Members of City Council 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Date: 07-16-2009 Application #: 613 
~ = o~ = ~ 

Name of Applicant: Michael O'Connell 

Address: 3206 S. Lombard Ave. Berwyn 1L 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: ~ 0 

Owner's Support Letter: !Xl 0 

Garage: 1Zl 0 

Driveway: 0 IZ 

Off Street: 0 ~ 

On Street: JZl 0 

Meets Requirements: I21 0 

'-= r-
N 
0 

1] 

r:y 
N 
0-

Information YES 

Interviewed: 

Handicap Plates: 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 09-09161 

'-I 
fTl-< 
7.:J 
:;;:0 

en" 
C!J 

OfTl 
";:0 
'1-5: --0_< 
fTlz 

NO 

o 
o 

-
I 

Recommendation: APPROVE \Xl DENY 0 Reporting Officer: S. Diaz #180 

Comments: 

Alderman: Ward: 



~ 

'" ~ 
'" ~ 
'" $ 
= 

STAnON COMPLAINT UCR 

9041 (Applicant File) 
REPORT TYPE 

Incident Report 
WHEN REPORTED 

07/201200913:28 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE 

071201200913:28 

Berwyn Police Department 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

! DESCRIPTION INCIDENT # 

Applicant File 09-09161 
RELA TEO CAD # ! DOT' HOW RECEIVED 

C09-038792 In Person 
LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO" STREET NAME) 

3206 S LOMBARD A V BERWYN, lL 60402 
j STATUS CODE STATUS DATE 

1 INVOLVED ENTITIES 
NAME ! DOB 1 AGE t ADDRESS 

O'Connell, Michael 3206 S Lombard A V Berwyn, lL 60402 
SEX I RACE I HGT I WGT ! HAIR 1 EYE, J PHONE 

M White, Caucasian 
UCR j TYPE I RELATED EVENT# 

Reporting Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

VEHlPLATE t ! 5~TE I TYPE 
INVOLVEMENT I VlN. 

YEAR I MAKE ! MODEL COLOR _I. COMMENTS 

2005 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVE 

In Summary: 

Michael O'Connell( ) resides at 3206 S, Lombard Ave, Berwyn IL 60402 and suffers from 

due to a vehicle accident Mr, O'Connell is requesting parking signs to be placed in front of his 

residence due to limited parking available, residential block(border of Berwyn-Cicero), and finds it difficult to walk when he 

is picked up or dropped off on a daily basis. Mr O'Connell owns the residence and also rents out the garage on the 

premises, 

Mr, O'Connell meets the state requirements for being handicapped and also meets the city requirements for being 

handicapped 

For the above listed reasons, this officer feels that this application should be considered for approval at this time. 

REPORTING OFFICER l'I'8AoR' I REVIEWER jSTAR" 

DlAZ" SERGIO R 



Applicant Name: 

Applicant Address: J ZOfo g - LoI'V/&Arj) 

Applicant Phone #: __ ...,_- ----~--':,,7'-L-.:=..;.-~-~ 

Applicant D/L #, 
~, .. -.,,~, -r----,---

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Color: _________ _ 

License Plate #: Handicapped Placard #: 

Does Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair Walizer Cane ~ Oxygen., _ 

Parking Availability: 

Driveway IJ.o 
--'-''''-----

Garage '1 ILf-
e 

On Street II S Off Street tJ b 

Notes: , j\lIQ Q~i)tSe.ll Y'I.P(1, Pc iJ fl,r~(~O \,.)tc!il l~ 0fcl*U O\l.t±V ~15 ~(dAj,,\k 
\NlAo 11 il£ \)~ 6+rn~S, '\J:e:a~ \J hM\.teD ~&\iIN~ i l ,\16 /JAr ~ en gDfi2- bf' 

C,C€"(LD 0,,\ \gJr!\WA:{~' ef.f,ilE"I)ti\\"'-' 3-fo0tJ\- ' J~f[--f'D 
MIl.l,P t-- J ~i,.v cI.tPsa:..;\)~N~, (Zof,U'IlNJ O('o/vQ.U C~12 ) , I .:_ 

\?L\lC{ tJ ~..rt-(\el& \ -" 'J 

APPLICANT INTERVIEW 

Date: .~ 
. \ 

Time: .IDO[)[lW Results: Aff!eJfO 
Results: Date: Time: 

Date: Time: 

Date: Time: 

Date: Time: 

Completion Date:, t I fa (by 
Logged in Book: 7 I ((P {Oq 

Results: 

Results: 

Results: 

M/qlCl 
ApplicatiQIn Number: I to {.3 J 



J,.'bert J. Lovero ;i(J Mayor 
Theodore J. Polashek 

Sixth Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Priae 
6700 West 26'" Street Ber\\1'll, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 

www,berwyn-iLgov 

July 29, 2009 

Honorable Mayor Robert 1. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No. 612 
Debra Flythe - 6643 19th Street 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I concur with tlle [mdings of the investigating officer to approve the above handicap sign 
request. I ask this matter be approved by consent. 

Respectfully, 

Theodore Polashek 
6th Ward Alderman 



We SeNe and Protect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN 
PSLU2E BEPARTMENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

July 9, 2009 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Debra Flythe # 612 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

6643 19th Street 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALDERMAN Theodore Polashek 6th Ward 



6401 West3l'l Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (70B) 795-5600 
(Fax) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
and Members of City Council 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Dj,vision 

§ nS2 

Date: 07 July 09 Application #: 612 
-t::> r-~ 

'- m-<:. 
~ ::::0 

:A 0 
I .-n 

Name of Applicant: Debra Flythe 

Address: 6643 19th St Berwyn IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Infonnation YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: i:8l D 

Owner's Support Letter: ~ D 

Garage: D ~ 

Driveway: D r:;;5J 

Off Street: D ~ 

On Street: 1Zl D 

Meets Requirements: ~ 0 

Infonnation YES 

Interviewed: f6J. 
Handicap Plates: ~ 

Wheelchair: -Walker: ~ 
Cane: .. 
Oxygen: .. 
Report Number: 09-08638 

..s:> ef> co 
om 

» ~;:o 
'I..s<::: 
-~ 

., 0-<. 
In:=.:: 

J;:' 
r:J 

NO 

D 

D 

• -• -
Recommendation: APPROVE l.l:l DENY 0 Reporting Officer: S_ Diaz #180 

Comments: 

Alderman: 1t I Ward: 



Berwyn Police Department 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West .31st Street 

STATION COMPLAINT UCR 1. DESCRIPTION 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 
REPORT TYPE RELATED CAD" 

Incident Report C09-036482 
WHEN REPORTED LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO., STREET NAME) 

07/0912009 10:03 6643 W 19TH ST BERWYN, IL 60402 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE I STATUS CODE 

07/09/200910:03 

Caucasian 

INVOLVED VeHICLES 

I VEHIPLATE' ! S;;'TE 'TYPE INVOLVEMENT 

r YEAR I MAKE I. MODEL 

2002 iIR! 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVE 

In summary: 

COLOR -

\ DOH' 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

IL 60402 

I, VIN' 

J COMMENTS 

INCIDENT, 

09-08638 
HOW RECEIVED 

Telephone 

STATUS DATE 

Debra Flyth~~!:::i:tx~~;I1I11I11l!( resides at a multiple unit building located at 6643 19th St Berwyn IL 
60402 and suffers u' limits her mobility a daily basis. Debra Flythe also resides with her 

son Jason Flyth _who is also handicappe and drives him on a daily basis. 

Debra Flythe is requesting handicapped signs to be placed in front of her residence due to on street parking being extremely 

limited from the surrounding multiple unit buildings. The building in which Debra Flythe has no garage or parking lot for the 

building and must park fur from her residence to walk home and has trouble doing so. Debra Flythe also has a letter from her 

Condominium Association approving her request for the signs. 

Debra Flythe meets the state requirements for being handicapped and also meets the city requirements for being 

handicapped 

For the above listed reasons, this officer feels that this application should be considered for approval at this time. 

REPORTING OFFICER jSIT8AOR' I REVIEWER jSTAR fI 

DIAZ .. SERGIO R 1 



6643 - 6645 West 19th Street Condominium Association, Inc. 
6643 W 19th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

(773) 218-9918 

July 6,2009 

RE: Handicap Parking for Debra Flythe residing at 6643 West 19th Street in Berwyn, IL 60402, 
Unit 1W 

SPECIAL DELIVERY 

To Wbom It May Concern: 

" Subject: Authorization letter 

This letter hereby gives the approval of one (1) handicap parking space on 19th Street in front of 
the 6643 West 19th Street entrance for the sole use by Debra Flythe during the occupancy at 
6643-45 West 19th Street Building. This authorization's contingencies are as follows: 

• Any improvement to the street parking or green area in front of 6643-45 West 19th Street 
will require the imniediate vacation and removal of the handicap parking spot and will 
be subject to new authorization 

• The relocation of Debra Flythe from the 6643-45 West 19th Street building will require 
the immediate vacation and removal of the handicap parking spot 

The signatures below and on Addendum A signify that both parties, 6643- 6645 West 19th Street 
Condominium Association, Inc .. and Debra Flythe are in agreement 

The acceptance and the installation of the handicap parking by the Village of Berwyn signify the 
agreement to this authorization's contingencies .. 

cc: Stanley J. Czaj a 
Attorney At Law 
6121 North Northwest Hwy 
Suite 104 
Chicago, IL 60631 



6643 - 6645 West 19tb Street Condominium Association, Inc. 
6643 W 19th Street 
Berwyn, lL 60402 

(773) 218-9918 

Addendum A 

July 6,2009 

This notice hereby identifies the approval of one (1) handicap parking space on 19th Street in 
front of the 6643 West 19th Street entrance for the sole use by Debra Flythe during the occupancy 
at 6643-45 West 19th Street Building. The authorization's contingencies are as follows: 

-" 

• Any improvement to the street parking or green area in front of 6643-45 West 19th Street 
will require the immediate vacation and removal of the handicap parking spot and will 
be subject to new authorization. 

• The relocation of Debra Flythe from the 6643-45 West 19th Street building will require 
the i=ediate vacation and removal of the handicap parking spot. 

The signature below signifies that Debra Flythe fully understands the contingencies set forth in 
the Authorization letter and in this Addendum A and will uphold any and all responsibilities to 
remove the handicap parking space upon written request by 6643 - 6645 West 19th Street 
Condominium Association, Inc. 

~,;~,,"" 
Jftg!?lf- Ii Y17f& 

Print Name 7 

{ht1l4tJ t1 tV 11M 
Title/Official Capacily 

Z/7M7 Date / 



Applicant Name: 

ApplicantAdm~s: ____ ~~~~~~ __ ~ ____ ~ ________________________ ___ 

Applicant Phone #: --"="""7'======""""'" 

Applicant D/L #: D.O.R , ,;. 

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Color: -.:::6=:!.J..(:c!A-,\~ ______ _ 

License Plate #: Handicapped Placard #: 

Does Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair ___ Walker ~ Cane __ Oxygen.-L 

Parlcin~ Availability: 

Driveway -'-.:N""O __ Garage NO On Street i e~ Off Street N 0 

Notes: 

Date: IoLJ,o Log Time: , Ooe) AfY\ Results: A ~VCDvf() 
Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Completion Date: 1.0 / 2,D I 09 Application Number: 

Logged in Book: to 12,0/ Oq 



/ 
~ City of Berwyn 

A Century ofProgresB with Pride 

Nora Laureto 
8th Ward 

Aldermen 

6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Dlinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (70s) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2567 
www.berwynii.gov 

August 6, 2009 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

Attached is a request from Commodore Barry American Legion Post 256 located at 6919 W. 
Roosevelt Road, Berwyn, 11. The Post is requesting permission to block off the cul-de-sac at 
Roosevelt and Clinton Avenues on August 22, 2009 from 8:00 am. until 8:00 p.m. for their 
annual picnic. I am asking that you place this item on the consent agenda for the August 11th, 
2009 City Council Meeting granting them approval for the request. 

Sincerely, 

~-~ 
Nora Laureto 
Alderman, 8th Ward 
City of Berwyn 



(!ommodo'l£ J3a'C-'C-y rP05-t 256 
AMERICAN bEGION 

Telephone: (708) 484-9599 

8 th Ward Alderman Nora Laureto: 
Commodore Barry American Legion Post located on 
Roosevelt and Clinton Ave. on the South East corner 
is having their annual .. in the back yard. This 

.," "; ': ''',.: , 

Bless America. 

.... '"'.::,,,;L~."·E' (~j:r+tl::;!,.'. cul-de-sac on 

"¥~c'-L to 8pm. We 
hri'If.;M''V ou and God 

,:., ... , ••....•. , .,; Commander 

---- 6919 Roosevelt Road • Berwyn, Illinois 60402 ----



.luly 27, 2009 

Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, I L 60402 

Re: Request for Solicitation Permit 

~ Girl SCOUtS0 

Girl Scouts of Greater 
Chicago and Northwest Indiana 
222 N. Riverside Plaza 
Chicago, IL 60606 
T 630 544 5972 F 630 544 
5999 
www.girlscoutsgcnwi"org 

On behalf of the Girl Scouts who are members of our council and residents of your community we respectfully request 
permission to solicit our Girl Scout products in your municipality as follows: 

Fall Product Program 
(Nuts, Candies, Magazines) Annual Cookie Sale Program Annual Booth Cookie Sales 

Order taking dates: Order Taking dates: 
October 1-18, 2009 January 1-25, 2010 

November 13-30, 2009 February-March 2010 Permission solicited from local 
Product Delivery Product Delivery and Money merchants 

Collection 

Attached is an information sheet that provides you with general information If the attached information is sufficient, 
please check the appropriate box below and e-mail (or fax) this letter back to me as soon as possible. If you require an 
application or require other specific documentation please fill out the section below. 

If you require a Certificate of Insurance, please check your records for the most current certificate on file Our certificate 
of insurance is automatically sent to you directly from our insurance agent on or about January 1 each year 

If you have questions or need additional information, e-mail me at ccarlson@girlscoutsgcnwi.org or call me at (630) 544-
5972 

Thank you for your support and for helping our girls to Discover, Connect and Take Action to make our world a better 
place. 

Christine Carlson 
Director of Product Program 



I rJ.ST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
In Care of the City Council 
The City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

(UNITED CHURCH of CHRlSn 

6500 West 34th Street • Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
Office: 708-749-0676 • Cell: 708-846-0759 

Email:-jolmclark9@comcast.net 
Reverend John R. Clark 

July 27th, 2009 

Dear Mayor Lovero and Berwyn City Council: 

The First Congregational Church of Berwyn respectfully requests that the City of Berwyn 
close Gunderson Avenue between 34th Street and Ogden Ave. on Sunday, August 23rd. 
2008, between the hours of 9:00 a.m. And 5:00 p.m. The First Congregational Church 
Of Berwyn plans to hold a Festival and Classic Car Show in the afternoon of that day to 
which the public will be invited. Our church has no yard to speak of and Gtmderson 
Avenue was closed off in the past for such an event. 

We are still working out the details of this, but we do anticipate that there will be food 
for sale. We are also in the process of getting the permits from the Berwyn Health 
Department for this event. 

I thank you on behalf of the members of the church for your kind attention to this 
matter. 
Sincerely, 

f))-yt,J-
Reverend John R. Clark, Pastor 



st ODILO SCHOOL 
Catholic Faith - Academic Excellence - Family Partnership 

August 4, 2009 

Berwyn City Council Members 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Berwyn City Council Members: 

St Odilo Parish is holding an Oktoberfest on Saturday, September 12u" For safety reasons,we would 
like to have permission to block off 23'" Street from Clarence to East Avenue from 10:00 a"m. until 
10:00 p.ru. on that date. We would also like permission to block the alley running from 23,d to 24u, 

Street during the same time frame. 

Thank you for your consideration of this matteL 

Very huly yours, 

L~ if JhU-t1 
William P. Donegan ~ 
Principal 

6617 W. 23rd St., Berwyn, IL 60402 • 708.484.0755 • www.saintodilo.org/school 



August 6, 2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 

BERWYN 
MAIN STREET 

Aldennan of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE:. Closure of East Avenue north from Cermak Road to the alley for the "Czech Oasis" 
at Houby Fest. 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Executive Director 
Berwyn Main Street 

BER\WN MAIN STREET 

7045 CERMAK ROAD. BERWYN. Ill.!NOI!), 60402. • TEl.: 70H 4):(4 Hoo(J • WEB: 

! ',' 



LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This License Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") is made this 

_ day of , 2009, between the BERWYN MAIN STREET, INC., an Illinois 

not-for-profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as "BMS"), and the City of Berwyn, an 

Illinois Municipality (hereinafter referred to as the "City"). 

WHEREAS, EMS has need of temporary location along Cermak Road in Berwyn 

for a beer garden and entertainment area during Houby Festival 2009 (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Festival") on October 3 and October 4, 2009; and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of real property located at Cermak Road and 

East Avenue, north from Cermak Road to the alley, Berwyn, Illinois. The licensed 

property consists of the paved parking area, which is sufficient to meet the stated needs 

of BMS for parking during the Festival; and 

WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant a temporary license, right and privilege to 

BMS and its Vendors, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, for 

conducting a beer garden, along with the possible sale of other alcoholic beverages, 

staging various forms of entertainment, as well and related vehicle ingress, egress and 

parking as well as pedestrian ingress and egress on the Site .. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and sufficient consideration acknowledged as in 

hand received and in consideration of the mutual covenants, representations and 

conditions hereinafter contained, BMS and the Owner agree as follows: 

Section 1: License GrantedlDuration. The City grants to BMS an exclusive, 

temporary license for the time required to complete the Festival, specifically from 

October 3, 2009, at 3:00 a.m., to October 4, 2009, at 12:00 a.m., for the purpose of 

conducting a beer garden, along with the possible sale of other alcoholic beverages, 

staging various forms of entertainment, as well and related vehicle ingress, egress and 

parking and pedestrian ingress and egress on the Site. The City grants the exclusive, 

temporary license to EMS at no charge or cost 

iMnnage 141159 I 1 



Section 2: Indemnification. Berwyn Main Street shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the City from any and all expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and 

costs), claims, liability, losses or causes of action for injury to or death .. of any person or

persons and for loss or damage to any property which arises from the grant of this 

license, except in the case where a court of competent jurisdiction finds that such 

liabilities, injuries, losses, death and damages are caused soley by the City's own willful 

and wanton or negligent acts or omissions. 

Section 4: Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a) Amendment: This Agreement, including all Exhibits attached hereto, 

represents the entire, integrated agreement between the parties hereto 

with respect to the license granted herein and shall supersede all prior 

negotiations, representations or agreements pertaining thereto, either oral 

or written. 

b) Applicable Law and Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois and venue 

for any lawsuits shall be Cook County, Illinois 

c) Counterparts: This Agreement may be signed upon any number of 

counterparts with the same effect as if the signatures to each were upon 

the same Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto executed this Agreement on the 

date(s) written below and this Agreement shall be effective as of the date that the last 

signatory signs this Agreement. 

BERWYN MAIN STREET, INC. 

BY~ 
Oate: __________ _ Oate: 

Attest: Attest: 

By ____________________ _ 

Its: -------------- Its: --------------
Oate: __________ __ Oate: _____________ _ 

iMnnage 141159 I 2 



~
~:r:~~' Lovero 

U-
yor 

/ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www"berwyn"Ugov 

Date: tia 5 10 q 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS.T. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party _""2...,5"'--=-0--"0"--___ block of Sea v I \ \ -e 

Honorable Mayor O'COI1I1or & Members of Council: 

Attached, please fmd a petition for a block party on the _->M"-'-"S""-'=6'-'O'""--____ block 

Of S (la\) d \~ 
The residents request permission to hold the event on ffi), @,' IS,. d. 0 0 1 
With a rain date of A It'6 6l?} I ;;loe 9 ' We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them, 

Thank you for your consideration_ 

Yours truly, 

,- ' 
Contact person is: 

Address is: Q-5 d (r s (10\/\ \ \-e 
Phone number is: , C' • 

****PLEASE RETURN ,3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE .QS (j 0 BLOCK OF S,CO V \ I \:Q. 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT ABLOCK PARTY ON 8\ l'OJ I S; :JcoCZ 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF {O A (fIAND \ 0 l? I'b- , OUR RAIN DATE IS & u~ f) {'rJoo I .. 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL** 

NAME ADDRESS 

~.~' .. S .. SC.QJ~LtLf. ......... _ ..... _ .................. ! 

!.?:.,?: ... ;S ... 5.CRs.?)'..\ \e.. ....... _ ........... _ ..... _ ... .,;( 
~ \~CJ 0 > 11 J 
:::: .... -~ .. ~ ....... (".- ..... ~ .. ji!l' .. -.................... -.,. 

::?O ......... ~ ..... ~.b:e ................ CJ 

~S.~5 ..... S .. ~.~\..\~ ...................... _./t 
J -r:. ~ .9: .... _~ .. ~ .. I/..r .. II.~ ___ ..... _ ............ tp 

~.~?. 3 ...... SCO.Y.1 1./. fl .... A 1£e. ..................... '7-

If.?f ..... Ja ~ J!t-f{k., .............................. B 
;}5.~s: ..... :;.r;(.!.Vj/k. ..... W~.:: ........ 1 
:25:1.8:. .. B.c..o~. ; .. \L .. Q .................. _ ... 1. 9 

-R.f/l. ... X'. r;:: Q..':: dl.IJz ................. j.1 
($ r/!:/1. ... SOWJ: ..................... _ ....... I.e?-

~.2~1.2 ..... ~ ...... $C.b.~'"':/c:;;. ........... f..s 
~.':2 d.. J ..... S ....... S. (t).11 i.1.! .e ............... I.:f 
'253·7 ..... SCDfjILLG: .......... P -
z·~··J·H·····~:L.Qv..l.IL~ ........... !..-:r 



Robert J. Lovero V /\ "tjyor 
A Century of Progress with Pride \0 6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788 2660 Fax: (708) 788"2675 

www,~erwyn·ilgov 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party ~<?'LO",-,-O ____ block of ~q+t f)q(f, 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the __ <9_'3_' _0_0_, _____ block 

Of __ ~~~q~~_ .. ~P~t~=(~~~ ______ __ 
The residents request permission to hold the event on ~~ ~ q I dCxJ0 
With a rain date of (\ ,!, 1 V\ -30 .:JOurl _ We are aware of the ordinance 

J 
regarding block parties and will abide by all of them_ 

Thank you for your consideration .. 

/1 
Yours tnlIy, ,/ k I ,-

t/<' .. I ~/ f~ B /\ 
.,C:::;) C7 ..... v 

V 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



t";< .. 
, 'ejf 

WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE Co goo BLOCK OF 'Ci-.. Cj+:- /L " 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON 1!.:;t ~ ( O<j 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF q .GO b.z'l'\AND C''\ -6(1 ([{\ ,OUR RAIN DATE IS '3 I ~O (OC1 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL ~ 

NAME .- ADDRESS 

::::::::::~:~:if~:::::~~~t~t:fs:::::::::::::::::::::: 
[P B l/ . ::l a fCrf-CrL .......... ,. '~'i" o ....... u.'B::£fff\ ..... p L' ............... . 

........... ~ ..... L.:L ... y.1.., .......................................... . 

11-tA PI ......... £/S .. S}5. .. \,.N ................... h..\. .................... . 

......... ~~~,( .. ~~::~~~~z-t'~.~~_ ................. . 
G8JO J9 f4 f(' .. ............ : ............................... ~ .......................... . 

....... L;99.~.~.2E!.~.~~Z-..... &D .. .. 
~:l~2~l'i:~: 
/' 0, Q'l',,"0- fj'/ Y1 "'. 
'-£) is 0 0 o<~\ - '-- . ..--

:::::::::,:j.2:~:::::::aq:~:.lt;:::~::::::: 
......... ~jQi::l ....... a:It ... rt ................... . 
. ...... . Cr .. ~aD ......... 0(:1":; .... (1::-: ................... . 
......... 0221.8 .......... Q?qf~ .. .. f?: .................... c0 
) ..... ~.~ .. f..Ce ........... ~ ..... e.~ .................. . 

f..p '2 t; S' a q-f±., 0 L ~~ .................................. 1l~ .................... . 

....... ~J)..37 .......... ~ ... L?-: ................. .. 



Robert J. Lovero 

J I" \ ~ay", 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 
www,berwyu-U.gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

DateC'i- O~ -OC1 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the __ ']0<.,1,* ' block 

Of ~A.J,\.l \Q.;( A II lL . . 
\, A\,~ 2n. ' Nl . The residents request permission to hold the event on --'--'-'11""J"+----'=-~-'-\-"l,L:::::!"-=L-'---

With a rain date of Sq r ( ;lo rit 
I 

. We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them_ 

Thank you for your consideration, 

- I 

Contact person is: - . I' -'. -------

21"3("\ t.u\(te(A,[Q, 
( 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN .3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE a lD+. BLOCK OF ~,( L\t\Q A, IQ, . 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON Pi U.g I 2 9 , OJ . 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 11) AND top m . OUR RAIN DATE IS 3e.p G 1091. 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL ~ 

NAME ADDRESS 



Robert J.).A>vero 

) /f!5r 
~\ -A Century of Progress with Pride 

, 6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn., illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 
" www"berwyn'ugov 

\ 

THOMAS J. PA VLll( 
CITY CLERK 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Fax: (708) 788-2675 

Re: Block party ! j1tiJ 
J'..ot/EAY) 

block of --=()J_--,es~ . ..:;:,.(-""'eY'-I--__ 

Honorable Mayo!""' & Members of Council: 

Attached, please fmd a petition for a block party on the __ -'-I--'=':52:...:..{),--='tJ'--___ block 

Of Weslo/ Aile: 
The residents request permission to hold the event on 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration_ 

Your. strcly, ~) I/mdi ~ 
Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: L 

****PLEASE RETURN .3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQVESTED**** 



W' TH' UND'RSIGNeD ResID,NTS DF TH' £l2!2 BLOCK DF U!~ 
DO HEREBY REQUESTPERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON= -09 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF fIk1I AND iJ;A1 ' OUR RAIN DATE IS f ' 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

-.- * • 

NAME; ADDRESS 
a 

_ •.• ________ .r_. ______ ... ___ • ____ .. _____ ... _ .... ____ .. __ ...... __ ._. __ ._. __ ~._ .. . 



Ro '\Ie~ J. Lovero /1 rMayor 

A Ceutury_ofbogress with ,,£ride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, l1linois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788"2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www .. berwyn-iLgov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITYCLERI( 

Date: ----"'~_--_~~_{)_7'--_ 
Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: BlockParty_-,;;Z~'3~o_a ___ block of t-h q 1/ {4NO 

Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of Council: 

Atta::;¢hed, PI" eas find a petition for a block party on the __ :2-"," _" ~~~5--=O",--=O=---__ block 

Of 7 / tJ #' £~f")1/CJ . 
" 2'"'6-1 0 

The residents request permission to hold the event on ___ ~~=--,6""",, ____ _ 

'l3 ftO 
With a rain date of ____ ..;<7'-'--'''''--______ ,. We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Contact person is: 

Address is: >. 
Phone number is: , -. .... -

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE ,;230 D BLOCK OF j/l j!I ~.;::; 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON ;2.).. fi F ,44 uS~ 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF I pM AND :t f IV\. ,OUR RAIN DATE IS ?- '3 (1-0 

ALL REFUSE MUST B.E PlACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL-

NAME ADDRESS . 

..Jg.ilI1 .... Sb. ...... l.. -.. .. .. .. . .......... . 
.:<.~ lI.3 '~/I ;!.'W·~.IV.;p 

-~--------~-------------~-------------~~--------~----- .--------_._._---

'" .i?:~_3f ................ If!.'p..!!.fd~ ............... . 
.... 2:)9..r. ............ IP..f/!~ .............. . 
. :2}. q: .y ....... 2: .. .. lIu.f:::x.:.~~ ...... '" ... . 
d.3lJ.3 .... S., .... L ... ~. . .............. -t .... . 
.. ??.~ .. ? ...... ~.: ...... !: .... ~.r~!? ........ . 
.. . :~?; }f-····· .5.: ...... ··~JJ:2·/lur~)\· ... . 
......................... ~ ......... ~~~ ...... ~ ..... -

.... i~·~·i·~····i~·lA~Qt-XC!····· 
I ......................................... J. ............................. . 
~ .. <J:2 .. ~1 ......... s.f.I.-'.'J.h .. j.4 ... J1.d. ...... . 
4-........ ?:.3..3.9-........ tljJ .. l-J..k!.u.d .. lt.Ve 
........ f-;·;lff.:!1fft:::;l·%:.~ I ...................... f!" ................. / ............................. . 
···· .. i{~~·~· .. ··· .. 1Mq!':& .................................... . 

2-"33= $. H l b.j.\ Lt'\-t-l 0 """'.Je. 

:::::~:~::G:~~;J.;:[:;.;;:::::::::::::::::::::::: 
..... z~:?.1 .. l{(~t?dt:1> ...................... . 
...... dj~.fL~Jh~/~· .. , .. r; .... ·· .. · .. ······ .. · .. 

l~I~5~~~~_ 



July 22, 2009 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
& the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

Mayor Lovero & the Berwyn City Council: 

George's Tavern 
Paul-Drakes, Owner 
6741 W. Stanley Avenue 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

This letter is to request a permit andior any other requirements of the city in order to celebrate 
George's Tavern's 69th anniversary (located on 6741 W. Stauley Avenue), on August 29, 
2009, in the following manner: 

Outdoor Festivities (3:00 p.m. - 12:00 a.m.) 

• Closing down Stanley Avenue between Euclid Street and Oak Park Avenue 
(one-block radius) during the above-designated time. 

• Beer and soft drinks to be served within George's Tavern and enjoyed outside 
of George's Tavern within this one-block radius. No hard liquor will be 
permitted outside of George's Tavern. Food/appetizers will be served free of 
charge. 

• Live entertainment - a five-piece band, to perform between 5 :00 p.m. - 11 :00 
p.m. And, 

• Approximately three tables (reserved for the Berwyn officials) and one 
hundred chairs will be setup outside of George's Tavern, within this one-block 
radius; the tables and approximately twenty-five chairs will be setup under a 
covering/tent. Two-three small coverings/tents will be setup in total. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this request If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me at (630) 202-2775. 

9;;;;~e,~ 
/ Paul Drakes, Owner 

cc: Liquor Commissioner 



\ 

\ 

\~.
Ob. ,ert J. Lovero 

i Mayor 

) 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Dlinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 788'2675 

www .. berwyn"ilgov 

Date: :::; I ~ /.a '1 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block partyi4LJ . .it3 block of 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the _....:2-::::. ,-,U ... ",.tJ«..· '·.::::tJfc..· _____ block 

The residents request permission to hold the event on 

With a rain date of ..5 fA atif4tf.#h,18' S<"'. We are aware of the ordinance . I ? 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly, 

Contact person is: 

Address is: .s. 
Phone number is: --.-' 

****PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE Z O;,(!JO BLOCK OF E-ut':.. I ,'oJ , 

DO HEREBY REQlIEST-I:>ERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON ..5 u~;./ , Au S. ;:..:S 
q ~ r;J 

BETWEENTHEHOURSOF 16am AND mpro ,OUR RAIN DATE IS Aug ~dl 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

NAME ADDRESS 

.... ;?,k.~.~ ...... S_ ... ~~u:....LL.~d ... AI..I..c.. .. . 

.... ~. v.. 2 .. 9. .... 2-.: .. .E.'!:d"d .... :A.If!?, .............. . 

. ow.tJ<j .. ~rn.d .. ~ .................. . 
Q IdiCf'. .. f-;a~d!.>L .. !.!Y'. ~ ................ . 
.. ~~~I ... ~~ ... £1:L.~~I.r;£ ..................... . 
2.t2. Z:. Z .... ~ L.. 2. ... .J. ~e. ................. . 
L0ZO.:?. ' ... A.\£ ................... . 

~~, ~ i~ ~ ........... mm •••••••• 

2.4/11::.. ..s:.UI2 ................................ . 
~c/ 

15~~····~· .. ··Z····:·:·;·; .... c I; ~ ':::!.~ .... (.·LA..!:./--tci 

.... .. L\,d.':\ .... ~.: ... ~I!. 0.~~ A ........ '" .. , '" .............. . 

...... t:~033-.)"~-0clJc,L·/~···················· 
" ..... ~~ ~.l-.c:1. ···bvv.!···· .......................... . 

," /"/--" 'I) 
~ ... 0 .. ? ... ?.~::.~. ~~.~}[ ................................. . 


	part-1
	part-2
	part-3
	part-4

